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To drive for unity and excellence of the
construction industry of Hong Kong
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To strengthen the sustainability of the
construction industry in Hong Kong by
providing a communications platform,
striving for continuous improvement,
increasing awareness of health and
safety, as well as improving skills
development.
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Chairman’s Message
FENE

I am very pleased to present the Construction Industry Council Annual
Report 2014. With numerous major infrastructure and multiple large-
scale projects engaged in Hong Kong, our industry’s activity level looks
to remain high for the next few years. To face the opportunities as
well as the challenges proposed ahead, the CIC was keen to maintain
the collaboration with our stakeholders to promote four key strategic
directions that help our industry thrive: manpower, safety, image
building, and construction innovation.

Attracting and Retaining Manpower in Construction
Industry

One of the major challenges for the construction industry in 2014 has
been the ongoing issue of manpower shortage. According to the Report
of the CIC Manpower Forecasting Model on Workers published in October
2014, it is predicted that the industry will need approximately an extra
10,000 to 15,000 skilled workers to meet its burgeoning needs through
2018. However, the keen demand for skilled labour has yet to be fully
addressed and threaten to blight our industry in the immediate years to
come.

In view of this, the CIC established a Task Force on Short-term Labour
Supply inJanuary 2014, involving both employer and employee
representatives from the industry. The Task Force identified 26
trades facing a problem of manpower shortage which helps industry
stakeholders better plan the manpower needs of those specific
trades. The CIC and its counterparts have stepped up to attract a
local workforce to boost the labour supply through various training
programmes and initiatives. Apart from regular in-house training
courses and collaborative training schemes, the CIC launched the
Construction Industry Cooperative Training Scheme (Labour Union) —
Pilot Scheme in 2014 to meet the expanding manpower needs of the
metal scaffolding trade.

Areinforced profession and skill recognition system helps attract and
retain talents for the industry. The Construction Workers Registration
(Amendment) Bill 2014 was passed in the Legislative Council in
December 2014 for commencement on 1 April 2015. The Bill facilitates
the implementation of the remaining phase of Prohibition under the
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance (‘CWRQ”) (Cap. 583)
(i.e."designated workers for designated skills”) to fully launch the
construction workers registration scheme in April 2017. The full launch
of the workers registration scheme under the CWRO will be a key
milestone in the long-term development of the construction industry,
and the CIC will continue to promote and facilitate implementation of
the remaining phase of Prohibition under the CWRO in the coming year.
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Supporting a Safe and Healthy Work Environment

For the construction industry to thrive, we must continue to make sure
that our work sites are free of the “4Ds” (i.e. dirty, dangerous, demanding,
and disorganised). Towards this aim, the CIC launched multiple
measures to promote site safety in all facets of the industry, including
improvements in site tidiness, additions to on-site welfare facilities, and
stepped-up safety training.

The third Construction Safety Week jointly organised by the CIC and

the Development Bureau took place this year with multiple new
programmes designed to further promote “Zero Accidents”. One of these
programmes was a morning Qigong exercise session led by the Hon Mr.
LEUNG Chun-ying, the HKSAR Chief Executive. With 833 construction
industry practitioners, the session set a new Guinness World Record for
the “Largest Qigong Lesson”. Another programme, the Brainstorming
Workshop on Construction Safety, further reviewed the existing safety
management system and explored paths for improvement through
group discussions with key construction industry stakeholders.

We believe that a culture promoting caring and safety in construction
industry helps boost morale, and strengthens the sense of belonging
tothe industry. It not only enhances productivity and efficiency of
construction workers, but also retains as well as attracts manpower
which in turn benefits the sustainable development of the industry. The
CIC continues to be recognised for taking care of our fellow workers
through projects like our dedicated welfare scheme, including the CIC
Scholarships for Family Members of Registered Construction Workers
with 20 scholarships awarded, and the Pilot Medical Examination
Scheme for Construction Workers with about 2,200 participating
workers. This year, we are pleased to receive the Distinguished Family-
Friendly Employers (Organisation Category) Award from the Family
Council.

Encouraging Construction Innovation

Against the backdrop of a tight manpower supply and a competitive
global environment, elevating productivity and promoting innovation
in the Hong Kong construction industry is the key not only to resolving
our manpower challenges but also to enhancing our competitiveness.
Now more than ever, the industry needs to extensively adopt modern
construction methods, techniques and information technology.

To encourage the wider application of Building Information Modelling
(BIM) technology in Hong Kong in a systematic and strategic manner,
we launched the first-ever BIM Year 2014. This scheme included a
series of conferences and seminars, training sessions, exhibitions, and
publications, as well as the launch of BIM Excellence Awards 2014.
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Chairman’s Message
FENE

We also followed up on the successful CIC Conference 2013 whose
theme was “Construction Innovation: Productivity and Technology”, with
the equally fruitful CIC Conference 2014 - “Construction Innovation,
and Safety Enhancement for the Betterment of Our Society” The CIC
Conference 2014 was designed to stimulate a more in-depth discussion
on new construction innovations and to augment the construction
industry’s productivity and safety performance.

Building a Professional Profile and Positive Public
Image

Another core part of the CIC's mission is promoting and expanding the
public image and better understanding of the construction industry.
Towards this end, we held numerous publicity events and campaigns to
attract new entrants and encourage industry practitioners to provide
attractive working incentives such as stable income, career ladder and
safe work environment. We also organised the “Build Up Ambassadors”
scheme to invigorate the positive and professional image of the industry.

In addition, two new TV drama series, Dreams Come True and Dreams
Come True Il, were produced in collaboration with the Development
Bureau and RTHK in 2014 to promote our industry’s profile. The
programmes featured stories of successful construction practitioners
ranging from trainees to professionals, and received positive feedback
from the public.

To further enhance the industry’s professional image, the WorldSkills
Hong Kong Competition 2014 cum Construction Industry Mega Fun
Day was held at the Kai Tak Cruise Terminal on 27 and 28 June 2014.
The two-day event successfully attracted over 23,000 visitors. Four
candidates were selected to represent Hong Kong in four construction
trade competitions at WorldSkills Sdo Paulo 2015 to be held from 11 to
16 August 2015. Through the participation and promotion of this event,
we hope to promote local craftsmanship, build up the professional
image of construction workers and foster the exchange of knowledge.
We also intend to promote the CIC and the construction industry to
attract more young talents into the industry.

The Way Forward

As construction activities look to soar high in the coming decade, both
business development and career outlook for the industry remain
positive. We will continue to work closely with the HKSAR Government,
as well as industry stakeholders, to train more workers to meet
construction’s correspondingly increasing manpower needs and strive
for excellence for the industry.
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The CIC has commissioned a consultant to carry out a comprehensive
review on sustainable growth, the Consultancy Study on Development
Strategy for the Hong Kong Construction Industry. This review

will formulate not only a forward-looking strategic plan, but also
measureable success factors as well as pragmatic recommendations
to tackle all major issues of the industry. The study will be completed by
the third quarter of next year.

Conclusion

The CIC works persistently to help the construction industry enhance

its professional image, promote a safe work environment with zero
accidents, and endorse advanced and efficient techniques and
technology. Together we are committed to making Hong Kong a low
carbon city. Facing all the opportunities and challenges ahead, we will
remain true to our vision and stand firm on our mission to strengthen the
unity, sustainability and long-term growth of Hong Kong’s construction
industry.

Finally,  would like to thank my fellow Council members and colleagues
atthe CIC, as well as our boards and committees, for their invaluable and
priceless work in 2014. With your continued assistance, | am positive
that we will be able to meet the expectations of our stakeholders and
the challenges facing our industry head-on to build a better, safer,
greener,and more technologically advanced construction industry in
Hong Kong.
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Executive Director’s Report
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20714 was a productive year for the CIC, and saw a big step in taking the
construction industry forward. In this fruitful year, we celebrated 100
achievements across six core areas: Research and Innovation; Industry
Excellence; Public Profile and Recognition; Communications; CIC’s
Service Quality; as well as Greening and Sustainability.

An Ongoing Focus on Research and Innovation

Hong Kong’s construction industry prospers through ongoing research
and innovation. In 2014, the CIC established a new committee, the
Committee on Productivity and Research, to benchmark construction
productivity and identify drivers and opportunities for improvement.

In the sphere of research, the CIC continued its dedication to providing
funding for projects that add value to our industry. To date, the CIC has
granted HK$26 million for 25 research projects focusing on areas such
as construction technology, environment and sustainability, construction
health and safety, construction materials and productivity.

Additionally, the CIC issued multiple reports to aid in forecasting
manpower needs and construction expenditures, including the Report
of CIC Manpower Forecasting Model 2014 (Workers), the Report of

CIC Manpower Forecasting Model 2014 (Site Supervisory Personnel,
Technicians & Professional), and the Construction Expenditure Forecast
(2014/2015t0 2023/2024). The inaugural issue of the CIC’s Innovation
in Construction Research Journal (iCON) was also published in 2014,
as well as the Hong Kong Construction Industry Performance Report for
2012.

Striving for Excellence

The CIC has long been a frontrunner in the push for excellence and
continual improvement of the industry. Six key strategic directions were
identified after the CIC’s first Council Members' retreat: formulating

the industry’s vision and goals; developing a competent, innovative

and skilled workforce; fostering a culture of safety; building capability
to enhance productivity; greening the built environment; and striving

for the industry’s sustainable development. Moving further forward,
the Consultancy Study on the Development Strategy for the Hong Kong
Construction Industry commenced in 2014, launching a comprehensive
industry review in the six key areas to bring the construction industry

to new heights. This study is expected to tackle important and critical
issues facing the industry as well as strive for excellence and continuous
improvement for the industry’s sustainable growth.
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To facilitate the implementation of Building Information Modelling
(BIM) in Hong Kong’s construction industry, the CIC initiated a series

of promotional campaigns, and organised and co-organised a wide
range of events under the BIM Year 2014, including the Project Clients
Summit: Development of BIM Implementation Strategies, the 2014 Real
Estate Project Management BIM Strategy Summit in Beijing, the BIM
Showcase and BIM Academic Paper Presentation, the BIM Day during
the Hong Kong International Building and Hardware Fair 2014, and
HKIBIM-CIC Conference 2014.

The CIC produced two BIM-related publications:the Roadmap for
Building Information Modelling Strategic Implementation in Hong Kong’s
Construction Industry which aimed to set out implementation strategies
for BIM in Hong Kong’s construction industry and to facilitate industry
stakeholders to prepare themselves to adopt BIM; and BIM @ CIC
Conference 2013 - Construction Innovation: Productivity and Technology
which featured valuable BIM insights from the speakers who attended
the conference. The CIC also initiated the industry-wide BIM Excellence
Awards to recognise construction practitioners who have spearheaded
an effort to harness BIM technology and processes to advance design,
construction and project excellence. The results of these Awards, which
are divided into the categories of BIMer of the Year, Young BIMer of the
Year, and Construction Innovator by BIM, will be announced in Jan 2015.

Other events were organised to promote the overall professional
knowledge and skills of practitioners. In March 2014, the annual
Mediation Week was held to promote the wider understanding and use
of mediation in dispute resolution, while the Conference for Construction
Industry — Engineering Risk Management and Integrity Building was
organised to enhance industry practitioners' standards of integrity and
awareness of corruption prevention.

Enhancing Our Public Profile and Recognition

Throughout 2014, multiple publicity events, public competitions and
image-building campaigns were launched to expand the public’s
knowledge of our corporate profile and work, as well as promote a
positive and professional image of the construction industry. The CIC
further strengthened the 2013 campaign’s theme “It Works Because

I Work” with a series of related activities, and was awarded the Silver
Award for Reputation Management in recognition of our efforts at the
Award Presentation Ceremony of the 2nd Hong Kong Public Relations
Awards 2014 on 26 September 2014. With this award-winning
campaign, the CIC presented creative bus shelters at high-traffic
locations in Tsim Sha Tsui and Causeway Bay to build a positive public
perception of our industry and its modern outlook.
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BATHRERE

The second CIC Photo Competition received 500 entries and over 5,000
public votes, while the 2013-2014 Liberal Studies Writing Competition
received more than 1,800 entries from over 140 primary and secondary
schools, and successfully promoted the CIC’s zero-carbon endeavours.
Additionally, with our 5th Hong Kong Digital Game Development
Competition Award Presentation, we recognised the potential young
talents can bring to developments in construction technology.

Promoting and Expanding Communications

The CIC is committed to further developing its good relationship with
the media, expanding its publicity campaigns for both the industry and
the Council. As part of these efforts, we launched a media luncheon to
introduce our new Chairmen, Directors, and committee structure,and to
share insights on our current strategies. We received a positive turnout,
with 25 editors and senior journalists attending from 23 major media
outlets. We also conducted multiple interviews with different radio
channels, magazines and local newspapers.

The CIC remains equally dedicated to keeping our industry stakeholders
updated and informed. In 2014 we published four issues of CIC
Newsletter and six issues of CIC Snapshots which provided regular
updates on the CIC's ongoing activities and strategic issues. To promote
best industry practices, the CIC's committees also produced two sets of
alerts, a set of technical guidelines, two sets of reference materials, a set
of fact sheet and 3 sets of posters. The CIC also launched its inaugural
journal Aedifice to highlight specific issues related to construction
safety, innovative technology, management of project risks and research.
All publications are available on the CIC website for the public as well as
construction practitioners.

The Internet and social media also remain extremely useful tools for
enhancing communications with the public and industry practitioners.
To date, the CIC website has served as an information centre, a
communication platform, and a coordinating body of the local
construction industry. In 2015 we will kick off a website revamp to make
the website more interactive and user-friendly.

Our relationship with local industry stakeholders is well-established,
and we have been dedicated to maintaining this open dialogue through
regular meetings. We also explored collaborative opportunities with
industry stakeholders from overseas and received seven visiting
overseas and Greater China delegations, including Guangzhou, Taiwan,
Russia and the United Kingdom, to share experiences and exchange
knowledge.
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Improving and Refining CIC's Service Quality

The CIC is constantly reviewing our services to identify areas for
improvement. In the past year, we renovated our CIC Aberdeen Trade
Testing and Training Centre and CIC Kowloon Bay Training Centre

to provide a better working and studying environment for staff and
trainees. To increase efficiency, we centralised the offices of several
departments in Aberdeen, and relocated the office of Management
and Safety Training Centre from Aberdeen to Kowloon Bay. We also
opened two new CIC Service Centres in the Nam Cheong MTR Station
and Sheung Wan, and automated the queuing and ticketing process in
the CIC Service Centre (Sheung Wan) to enhance customer service and
convenience.

Building and Greening a Sustainable Industry

In 2014, the CIC continued its keen support of environmental issues,
including dedicated funding support to the Hong Kong Green Building
Council (HKGBC). In October, the CIC and HKGBC co-organised a Hong
Kong delegation to attend the World Sustainable Building Conference
20714 in Barcelona to promote Hong Kong'’s sustainable development.
To further promote new ideas and innovations in the evolution of
sustainable development, the CIC is pleased to announce that the CIC
and HKGBC will host the WorldGBC Congress 2015 Hong Kong from 27
to 31 October 2015, and the next World Sustainable Built Environment
Conference inJune 2017.

Moving Forward into 2015

Following our many achievements in 2014, the CIC will focus on
launching new plans to support and improve our industry and
community in the coming year. We will continue to upgrade and expand
the services we provide with enhancements to our existing training
centres and training grounds, as well as by opening a new training
ground at Kai Fuk Road in Kowloon Bay, and training centres for BIM as
well as trade testing. And, we will continue to maintain a high standard
of integrity and heighten awareness of corruption prevention with the
ICAC. We hope all our stakeholders will work with us in 2015 to construct
a brighter and better future for the industry.
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BRI NS

Chairman, Construction Industry Council
BERRY TF

Ir LEE Shing-see

FRfE TERD

Chairman, Committee on Administration

and Finance
THRABEEZE S F/&

Mr. CHAN Kwok-yin, Andrew
FREIE %4&

Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan
BRIEZAR Ti2em

Ir CHAN Siu-hung
PRABLE TIZAM
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Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai
RER K&

Chairman, Committee on
Construction Safety
BELLEELREE TF

Ir CHEW Tai-chong

AXAE L6

Chairman, Committee on Procurement
and Subcontracting
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Membership of CIC

BEME

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike
AER FE LR AR B HE

Chairman, Construction Workers
Registration Board
BERXTAAMESES F/E

Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo
HRR SHE REW TR
. (Member since 1 February 2015)
s e (2015 2 5 1 BENAHHZBAE)

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence
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Membership of CIC
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14 17

Mr. CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony Ms. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada

BRIBER K4 BHE &+

(Until 21 September 2014) Representing Permanent Secretary for

(2014 # 9 A 21 HiE) Transport and Housing (Housing)
REEBREER FHNER (FE)

15

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

EHHE KA 18

Ir HON Chi-keung

BEEER TREM
16 Permanent Secretary for Development
Ir Prof. CHU Pui-kwan, Reuben (Works) (Succeeded Ir WAI Chi-sing

SR IS TR since 7 April 2015)
FEE BFER (I%)

(2015 F 4 5 7 HEEZEE =LK TIAN)
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Mr. HUI Siu-wai

B K&

Director of Buildings (Succeeded Mr. AU
Choi-kai since 29 March 2014)

EFE FR

(2014 FF 3 A 29 HEEEEHIE S£E)

20

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher
REE HIR

Chairman, Committee on Productivity

and Research
EEIRHAREZEZEE F/E



Membership of CIC
EENE

21

Mr. MAK Tak-ching
ERIE TE

22

Ms. Melissa Kaye PANG
wHE xt

23
Ir Kevin POOLE
EEL TREA

Chairman, Committee on Environment,

Innovation and Technology
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24

Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun
EE BIRIEM
Convenor, Objections Board
BEERHEFEZEE GEA

25

Mr. WU Shek-chun, Wilfred
SREEE K&

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick
=—3B BT IR

(Retired on 31 January 2015)
(2015 % 1 A 31 HHIE)
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Council Profile
EEEN

About the Construction Industry Council

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) was formed on 1 February 2007
under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance (Cap. 587). The CIC
consists of a chairman and 24 members representing various sectors of
the industry including employers, professionals, academics, contractors,
workers, independent persons and Government officials.

The main functions of the CIC are to forge consensus on long-term
strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations to the
Government, provide training and registration for the construction
workforce and serve as a communication channel for Government to
solicit advice on all construction-related matters.

Please visit www.hkcic.org for further details.
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Council Profile

LMy

CIC Functions (up to 31 December 2014)

Under Section 5 of the Construction Industry Council Ordinance
(Cap.587), the CIC has the following functions:

1. toadvise and make recommendations to the Government on
strategic matters, major policies and legislative proposals, that
may affect or are connected with the construction industry,and on
matters of concern to the construction industry;

2. toreflect to the Government the construction industry’s needs and
aspirations;

3. toelevate the quality and competitiveness of the construction
industry by promoting the ongoing development and improvement of
the industry;

4. touphold professionalism and integrity within the construction
industry by promoting self-regulation, formulating codes of conduct
and enforcing such codes;

5. toimprove the performance of persons connected with the
construction industry through establishing or administering
registration schemes or rating schemes;

6. toadvance the skills of personnel in the construction industry
through planning, promation, supervision, provision or coordination
of training courses or programmes;

7. toencourage research activities and the use of innovative techniques
and to establish or promote the establishment of standards for the
construction industry;

8. topromote good practices in the construction industry in relation
to dispute resolution, environmental protection, multi-layer
subcontracting, occupational safety and health, procurement
methods, project management and supervision, sustainable
construction and other areas conducive to improving construction
quality;

9. toenhance the cohesiveness of the construction industry by
promoting harmonious labour relations and the observance of
statutory requirements relating to employment, and by facilitating
communication among various sectors of the industry;
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10.

1.

12.

183.

14.

to serve as a resource centre for the sharing of knowledge and
experience within the construction industry;

to assess improvements made by the construction industry through
the compilation of performance indicators;

to make recommendations with respect to the rate of the levy
imposed under this Ordinance;

to conduct or finance educational, publicity, research or other
programmes relating to occupational safety and health,
environmental protection or sustainable developmentin the
construction industry; and

to perform any other functions relevant to the construction industry,
including those functions conferred or imposed on it by or under this
Ordinance, the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance (Cap.
583) or any other enactment.

Under Section 6 of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, the supplementary functions of the CIC are:

1.

2.

to provide training courses for the construction industry;

to establish and maintain industrial training centres for the
construction industry;

to assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in
the placement of persons who have completed training courses
provided for the construction industry; and

to assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any kind
of work involving or in connection with the construction industry, to
conduct examinations and tests, to issue or award certificates of
attendance or competence, and to establish the standards to be
achieved in respect of any such work.
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THE COUNCIL
AND ITS COMMITTEES

2EhHBETTEEZ8T

Committee on Administration and Finance

TBRRUBEEEES

Committee on Construction Safety ——
RERLEEZER

Committee on Environment, Innovation and Technology
BIR - AR EMEERES

Committee on Procurement and Subcontracting
RBRIRSHEEZES

Committee on Productivity and Research

SENRMREEZES
HESS

CONSTRUCTION
INDUSTRY COUNCIL

FESTE 34 :
Objections Board
BRERHEHEZESS

Construction Industry Training Board
BEXIRERS

Construction Workers Registration Board

BEXTAZMESS

Ad Hoc Task Forces
RREE/NE

Hong Kong Green Building Council
EERERERS

Zero Carbon Building Limited
FRRMERAE
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The Council and Its Committees

A = =
Task Force on Review of Major Construction Method Statements %gﬁ E%-F Eﬁé Eg
ETERIARBTEE/ME
Informal Task Force on Site Safety Incidents
T2 EHRIFEAFEME

Task Force on Site Safety Training

T2 FlRER /A

Task Force on Site Housekeeping Task Group on Implementation of Heat Stress Action Plan |
TinER2EE /A HTBRAHH RN TENME
Task Force on Working in Hot Weather Task Group on Preventing Fall Accidents through Building Design |
REERTIEEE/VE BFREAPUEREESE FEINTIEE
Task Force on Work Safety of Repair, Maintenance, Alterations and Additions (RMAA) Sites Task Group on Preventing Fall Accidents in Existing Buildings
e RE  BEENETHZ TERZEE/VE RAEETFHILNSES BTN
Task Force on Site Safety of Working in Lift Shaft Task Group on Site Safety of Working in Lift Shaft
FHEIE TN T 28 E/ VA FHEME TR Tih e 2 THE/ A

Task Group on Application of Innovative Design to Enhance Construction Safety

ERAF R A RS RER 2 TIE/)AE

Task Group on the Selection of Consultants

BRI AR TE/ME

Task Group on the Selection of Contractors

BSFGRR TE VA

Task Grogp on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts
HIRARE=RIE)NE

Task Group on Construction Safety Courses
Z2HIRRIET{E/NE
Task Group on Heritage Maintenance

SYEERE THEME

Course Advisory Panel on*Construction Supervisor
iR TRIRERMA
Course Advisory Panel on Quantity Measurement
THEEREEEE
Course Advisory Panel on Computer-aided Software for Construction Projects
R TIZ BB B M RIZE AR
Course Advisory Panel on Bricklaying, Plastering and Tiling
TR E IR IZ BRI A
Course Advisory Panel on Joinery

AR TERRIZRERE
Course Advisory Panel on Construction Formwork

EIERIREIRIZ B A
Course Advisory Panel on Painting, Decorating and Sign-writing
HEH T RIZ R A
Course Advisory Panel on Plumbing and Pipe-fitting
KM BRI A

Course Advisory Panel on Marble-laying

EREHBRIZEME
Course Advisory Panel on Metal Works
BB TERRERERA
Course Advisory Panelon Construction Plant Maintenance and Repairs
BRI R A
Course Advisory Panel on Electrical Installation
BREBRRIZERME
Course Advisory Panel on Construction Scaffolding Works

SRR RIZ B AR

Course Advisory Panel on Bar-bending and Fixing

M EETRIZEE A

Course Advisory Panel on Plant Operation
MR ERIRIZBE R A
Course Advisory Pane;t on Site Surveying @md Sur:/eying and Setting-out
EE TR B MR IR TR B BRIZEMA
Course Advisory Panel on Civil Engineering
TATERREREME
Task Group on Standardisation of Labour Return of Construction Sites

SRR TR TR/

Task Group on RMAA Manpower Research
BEFANMEIRE HETERTENME
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ORGANISATION
CHART

MRS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ir Dr. TO Wing, Christopher

DIRECTOR #
Training and Development 3Z3I| &% 2 &

Ir LEUNG Wai-hung, Alex Z#1£%

Construction Construction Development Construction S
Training Trade Testing and Support Manpower Servi(r:es
i JER T Services Research EERER

Esqipe ol TEAIH BR MR BEEANHRR S
Management
Kowloon Bay
| Training Centre el Skl

S — Training Centre

NEeE .

5j14gkeeh ﬁé@&g\%
AlRAR

Kwai Chung Trade Testing
| Training Centre Centre
%) B I#
AlaRA L SR L
Sheung Shui
| Training Centre
X
FlaRA O
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Organisation Chart
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BTk
g L+ TR

DIRECTOR #2 B% DIRECTOR #2 8%
Registration Services ST = ZCB 2 kit
Mr. WONG Chung-yan, Ivan Dr. LI Guiyi

TR £4 FEZE #L

Board Services

Technical
Services

Bl =75
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SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

SREEAE

Ir CHU Yin-lin

KREF TRED

Senior Manager - Training and
Development

B ER BARAETE

2
Ms. IP Wai, Cheryl
R 4t

Senior Manager - Human
Resources & Administration

ADERRIBTE BARASTE

Mr. KO Chun-hon, Ivan

SIRE £4E

Senior Manager - Training and
Development

BRI ARSI

(Since 1 January 2015)
(2015F 1515 )

4
Ms. LEE Oi-yen

FHR zt

Senior Manager - Internal
Audit

BEEET BARASHE
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5
Mr. LEUNG Siu-tin, Andrew

RNR K&

Senior Manager - Information
Technology

BRI BARAEE

6
Ir LEUNG Wai-hung, Alex

REWE TR
Director - Training and
Development
IEIREE g

Dr. LI Guiyi
TEX Bt
Director - ZCB
FlpkHt A8E

8
Ir LIU Tat-chiu, Davis

BEE TR

Senior Manager - Special
Projects

HHIEE SBREE
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9
Ms. TAM Qi-kam, Katherine

BEE Lt
Senior Manager - Finance

B SR

10
Ir Dr. TO Wing, Christopher

M &R BLIREM
Executive Director
HiTHEES

1
Dr. TONG Kin-lun, Thomas

e Bt
Chief Research Consultant -
Construction Manpower Research

BERATINIE BBt R

12
Ms.TSUI Ying-ha, Estella

BHEE &t

Senior Manager - Corporate
Developments

IEER R

(Since 30 March 2015)
(20153 530H )

13

Mr. WONG Chung-kit, Victor
ERG KL

Senior Manager — Council
Services

BEEFH BAREE

14
Mr. WONG Chung-yan, Ivan

THEE %4
Director - Registration
Services

AAMER ABE

Senior Management
SHREEAE

15
Ms. Miranda YEAP

BxXg z+

Senior Manager — Council
Services

HEFG BREE

pEREE-T-negER 29



N
AL

4
AT
W i -~

L]
O
=
<
Z =
o O
e
>0
O L!
Q)=

=
<
= 4

I
nrt
Y pules
o, b
O &

30  CONSTRUCTION INDH




T

Corporate Governance Report
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1. Corporate Governance Framework %%

VISION
=

To drive for unity and excellence of
the construction industry of Hong Kong

BETBRER BakE

Unity Excellence

EIF] s

Council Boards and Committees
== ZEEeREELZES

FIVE PILLARS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
TEEEANAEER
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Corporate Governance Report

EEARE

1. Corporate Governance Framework (continued)

The CIC Corporate Governance Framework was built with reference
to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices issued by Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the Corporate Governance
for Public Bodies — A Basic Framework, published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and Good Governance and
Internal Controlin Public Organisations, issued by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC). The CIC works in accordance
with the leading market practice in corporate governance,and, as a
statutory body, discharges its functions and responsibilities to the
public.

The CIC Corporate Governance Framework places its emphases on:

1.1 Executing the CIC’s functions in accordance with the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance (“CICQO”) (Cap. 587), the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance (‘CWRQ”) (Cap. 583) as well as
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201);

1.2 Exercising due care in using funds;

1.3 Creating value for the construction industry and the community
at-large;

1.4 Formulating policies and procedures that govern the operations
ofthe CIC; and

1.5 Communicating with stakeholders and business partnersin a
timely and informative manner.

Each of the five pillars of the CIC Corporate Governance Framework
represents the core values upheld by the CIC in the course of
business.

The standards of behaviour lay down our expectation on the official
conduct of the Council's members and staff. The core values behind
the standards are integrity, impartiality, and transparency.

The business of the CIC is governed by the organisation structure
and business processes. The execution of business processes

is guided by the pursuit of effectiveness, efficiency, and value for
money.

Risk management and control allow the CIC to remain versatile when
faced with various challenges in a dynamic world. Much emphasis is
placed on putting preventive measures in place that are part of the
overall plan to move the CIC forward.
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The CIC is committed to employing various channels to communicate
with its stakeholders regularly regarding its initiatives that are under
way and the outcomes of those completed throughout the year. This
positions the CIC as both a transparent organisation and a platform
for communication.

Corporate citizenship is a key element in building a better, fairer,
and stronger society. As the members, staff, and trainees of the
CIC engaged in corporate social responsibility initiatives, the social
message behind these campaigns and services dovetailed with
the CIC’s vision and mission of working towards a more livable and
sustainable future for Hong Kong.

. Composition of Council

The Chairman and the 24 Council members of the CIC are
appointed by the Secretary for Development. Council members
represent various sectors of the industry and other stakeholders,
such as contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, trade unions, the
government, academia, and other professional sectors.

The Council sets up five committees to better execute its functions.
Together with the five statutory boards established under the CICO
and the CWRO, they set the strategic direction and oversee the
operations of the CIC. Boards and committees further establish sub-
committees or task forces to tackle specific tasks or industry issues.

The aspirations of the industry and the Council are inseparable.
The Council's membership is a diverse representation so as to
ensure that the voices of a wide array of professionals and industry
practitioners are heard in the meetings. The CIC’'s members are
experts in their respective trades or professions, namely civil
engineering, electrical and mechanical engineering, surveying,
architect, construction project management, legal profession

and accountancy profession etc., covering virtually all areas of a
construction project. Together they provide leadership, guidance,
and oversight to the CIC.

Corporate Governance Report
TEEERRE

FEEERE AR ERHERNEIR
HIFAE#ITHRERMN TIERR - TRFZES
EREEXREBTaNERE -

TCELAREEREY —EE XY EATM
FRENEEMERED - FEKE BB
MBEHRITEEAREME  ELEHNE
EMZEENEIMERETE - RAREK—E
FEHEMAFENEEMS T -

. BEHEK

BENTENUUKEIRERERAER
- EXERBEATRRR - BEARZ
B0 Bel - HER BMR - T8 BF
FEMEE -

BEXRYTHEAZEZEE - LEFHETT
HEEE - BRRIE GREXZGIRD) f (2
EET ARG MR EEEEZ B
g KEGIERR T M EEE RS HEE -
ZEgNMEEZ BN SR/ EZEGN

THEME - EREHEFINEHMERENE -

ZEMMAHERAR - FEKEBHYARE
BEFHNEEZEMNE  HEOREKMERA
FZESAEANTRALTHES - KENWEE
BRESEMIE - £ARTRE  EETRE - A
2 2% FEHEEE FEAVSHR
L FRSEMBHRBEBENIES|LET
BEERAM - R RS0 SEREZN
BRI o

BEERE T NMFEFR

33



34

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

3. How Do We Get There?

There are as many opinions as there are people who hold them.

In light of this, the Council provides a communication platform,
allowing its members to set aside their sectoral interests and reach
consensus by focusing on the industry as a whole. As the industry
becomes more dynamic and robust, industry practitioners will
benefit from these constructive and continual exchanges of ideas. As
aresult, they will all be in a better position to take advantage of more
effective and efficient construction methods, a cleaner and safer
construction environment, and other synergies bringing in greater
economic rewards.

. Strategy in 2014

The highlights of the Council's strategy in 2014 are as follows:

Since the publication of the Report of the Construction Industry
Review Committee in 2001, the follow-up actions on the Report’s 109
recommendations have been under way for more than a decade.

In hopes of leading the industry to achieve new milestones in the
coming decade, the Council commissioned a consultancy study, the
“Development Strategy for the Hong Kong Construction Industry”
with the aims of identifying the industry’s major challenges and
concerns, as well as formulating a strategic direction for the industry
in order to keep up with the competition and meet future challenges.
Council members and a wide cross-section of industry practitioners
are to be consulted in a comprehensive review whose goal is to offer
fresh recommendations to the industry.

To tackle the industry’s manpower shortage, the Council set up the
Task Force on Short Term Labour Supply to identify trades with acute
labour shortage in order to facilitate their application for importation
of labour with the Labour Advisory Board. Twenty-six trades were
identified, and the Task Force continued to work with the industry to
address the issue.
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The Council made preparations for the enactment of the
Construction Workers Registration (Amendment) Ordinance. A wide
range of service enhancements, most notably the launch of a new
Construction Workers Registration System, would be implemented
after liaising with the industry.

In order to cope with the growing needs of service expansion,
the Council endorsed several projects to upgrade existing CIC
facilities. In 2014, the number of the CIC’s service and training
locations reached 18, which was nearly a twofold increase since
the amalgamation of the Construction Industry Council with the
Construction Industry Training Authority in 2008.

For membership, terms of reference and report of each committee
and board, please refer to the “Committee Reports”

. New Members

An orientation session was arranged for all new Council members.
The CIC’s senior management gave them orientation sessions whose
purpose was to familiarise new members with the CIC’s history,
governance framework, organisation, and key initiatives of the CIC.
Allnew members are to sign the Code of Conduct for Members
which details the stipulations about compliance with the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance, policies around acceptance of advantages,
conflicts of interest, and the use of proprietary and confidential
information.

. Council, Board,and Committee Meetings

The Council holds bi-monthly meetings whereas boards and
committees meet at least quarterly (except for Objections Board,
Construction Workers Qualifications Board and Construction
Workers Review Board which hold meeting where needs arise).

As a new committee structure was being implemented, several
committees underwent a transition period whereby the number
of meetings had been adjusted. The meeting schedule is set at the
beginning of each year to facilitate members to reserve time to
attend.
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During 2014, meeting attendance of the Council members was as 20145 BZEKEHFENEZNT ¢
follows:

Meeting Attendance

Council Committees
E = EEZEY
Council Members q ANF Csy EIT PNS PNR
BB

TER Rk HEBR £EXD

B BEZRE Hif IEH R#WR
Ir LEE Shing-see (Chairman) FEME TR0 (E/E)  6/6 8/8
Mr. AU Choi-kai # EmEE L& 1/1 1/1
Mr. CHAN Kwok-yin, Andrew PREIE So4 6/6 2/3
Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan PRIEAR TI2EM 6/6 4/4 2/3
Ir CHAN Siu-hung* BRABHE T REEM# 4/6 5/8 0/1 0/2
Mr. CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony*  FRIEE sci4* 4/4 1/3 0/1 0/1 1/2
Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai RER kA 5/6 5/7 4/4 0/1 0/3
Ir CHEW Tai-chong AR TIEEM 4/6 2/7 3/3
Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul HERZ A 6/6 8/8 2/3 3/3
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu [EEE kA 5/6 4/4 3/3 1/3
Ir Prof. CHU Pui-kwan, Reuben  Zmt#  20% TH2AD 4/6 1/4 0/3
Ms. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada * BEE Xt 3/6 4/4 4/4 3/3 3/3
Mr. HUI Siu-wai# FFAME A 4/5 414 3/3
Mr. KWAN Yuk-choi, James * BEM kLN 0/1
Mr. LAl Chi-wah REE L4 6/6 2/4
Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen FEIEIE  RIERD 6/6 2/3 1/3 1/3
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert MRE K& 5/6 2/4
Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher 228t #0% 6/6 6/7 4/4 3/3
Mr. MAK Tak-ching BEIE E£4E 0/6
Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence hEzE K4 5/6 3/4 3/3
Ms. PANG Melissa Kaye TE Xt 6/6 2/3
Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick TZ—H BLIEA 5/6 7/8 3/4 2/3
Ir Kevin POOLE E= LIZAD 4/6 6/7 2/3
Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike =iEE f£HE 4/6 2/3
Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun = ZUXTIRED 5/6 2/4 1/1 3/3
Ir WAI Chi-sing BEEK TR 5/6 8/8
Mr. WU shek-chun, Wilfred EMIEE 4 6/6 3/3 2/3
Mr. YU Wai-wai”® RERE L& 1/1
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Members of the

Construction Industry Training Board
Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick (Chairman)

Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert
Ms. HUNG Yee-man

Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
Mr. LAM Kai-chung, Albert
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert
Mr. LI Chi-leung

Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy
Mr. MAK Tak-ching

Mr. NG Kwok-kwan

Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung
Mr. SZE Kyran

Prof. TAM Chi-ming

Mr. TSE Chun-yuen
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Meeting Attendance

Members of the

Construction Workers Registration Board
Mr. CHONG Kit-lit, Paul (Chairman)

Mr. CHAN Chi-hin

Ir CHAN Chi-ming

Ir CHAN Loong, Geoffrey
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Ir CHUI Wai-sing®

Mr. FU Chin-shing, lvan
Dr. HO Hok-keung, Paul
Mr. HO Wai-wah

Prof. KUANG Jun-shang
Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen

Ir Dr. LAU Chi-keung, Jackson
Mr. LI Chi-leung

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence
Mr. PANG Long

Ir PANG Yiu-hung, Eric

Mr. WONG Siu-han, Rex
Ms. YU Po-mei, Clarice

Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo
Mr. YU Wai-wai

EREEIREZEEEHKE HE AT 8%
Z—H 1HETRE (EFE) 10/10
fAIRE  TF2AD 6/10
HE 5/10
FE/EFE BI=AD 6/10
MELR k4 6/10
MERE THE 8/10
Trm K4 9/10
BREE KHE 9/10
BEmIE Sh 0/10
RERE K& 10/10
BookER  TIZAD 8/10
MERER o 9/10
BEE B 5/10
FIRR  KE 8/10
Meeting Attendance
HE AT 8%
HEZ A (EFE) 6/6
PRIGTE ot 6/6
FRASEE  TAZAD 5/6
fR B2 TI2AD 3/6
BEE k& 5/6
BEEH TR 11
HEK %% 5/6
EE L 3/6
gz K4 5/6
BES % 2/6
BY HE 4/6
BEse 1T TIEA 4/6
=7 K4 5/6
mEE %4 5/6
¥ B %&4E 3/6
TR TIZAD 5/5%
FHE £4 5/6
REX wt 6/6
Fi5E TIZAM 6/6
REE KL 3/6

#  Movements of the Members during the year included:

(i) Mr.AU Choi-kai retired as CIC member on 29 March 2014 and was

succeeded by Mr. HUI Siu-wai.

(i) Ir CHAN Siu-hung resigned as member of Committee on Productivity and

Research on 10 November 2014.

(ii) Mr.CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony resigned as CIC member on 22 September

2014.

(iv) Ir CHUI Wai-sing retired as a CWRB member on 18 March 2014 and was

succeeded by Ir PANG Yiu-hung, Eric.
" Members retired on 31 January 2014

*  Representing Mr.Ying Yiu-hong

FRKERNEEBRIE

() B ELENR2014F3F208EIKE BT
DREERT -

(i) PREGHME TR2EMM2014F11A10BBHTEE N
MIRERELZEEKE -

(iii) PRIBESEAEN2014F9A22BBHEREKE -

(iv) EEHTIREIN 2014318 B EMEREET
ANAMEZESKE - AR TR -
20141 A3 BEMIAKE °

BEERE T NMFEFR
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Meeting proceedings

Meeting notices are issued to the members at least two weeks
before the meeting. Members are provided with detailed

meeting information one week before the meeting under normal
circumstances. Members are required to declare any conflict

of interest before discussion of the concerned agenda items
commence. The declaration and the actions taken, such as a
member refraining from participating in the discussion of the
concerned agenda, will be documented in the minutes. Meeting
minutes, attendance of members and discussions of each agenda
item, are circulated to members for comments with the finalised
approved version posted on the CIC’'s website (except the closed
door sessions of the Council, the Committee on Administration and
Finance and the Objections Board) for the public’s perusal.

The management of the CIC attends the Council, board, and
committee meetings to provide secretarial support. They may
present information, explain the CIC’s policies and procedures, as
well as answer questions raised by members. The management of
the CIC, under the leadership of the Executive Director, will follow up
on the execution of the strategic direction set by the members and
report from time to time.

The governance of the CIC centres on a system of checks and
balances based on the five pillars of the CIC Corporate Governance
Framework.
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7. Standards of Behaviour

The Code of Conduct for Staff covers areas of outside work,
confidentiality, conflicts of interests, acceptance of gifts, and
workplace conduct. All new hires are to sign the acknowledgement
of the Code of Conduct. In addition, the management staff members
are to declare in writing their compliance with the Code annually.
The Code of Conduct is renewed annually with reference to the best
practices promulgated by the Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC).

In 2014, the CIC co-organised the Conference on Engineering

Risk Management and Integrity Building with the ICAC, and fully
supported the launch of the ICAC Capacity Building Package. In view
of the high times of the Hong Kong construction industry, quality
outcome under hectic schedule and tight resources relies on how
practitioners uphold ethics and maintain professionalism in the
construction process. The CIC will work closely with the ICAC to
promote the Capacity Building Package to industry-wide parties in
the near future.

To reinforce staff’s awareness on the standards of behaviour
expected in the course of business, the CIC invited the authorities
to conduct training to refresh staff knowledge. Compliance with
the laws is the CIC’s priority. During the year, the CIC invited the
ICAC, the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data, and the Equal
Opportunities Commission to conduct staff trainings so that our
staff would remain conscientious and renew their vigilance and
integrity in discharging their duties.

On the other hand, suppliers and contractors should comply with the
probity clauses and declare their adherence to the anti-collusion
clauses as mandated by the CIC.

. Organisation Structure and Business Processes

As at 28 February 2015, the CIC had over 630 full-time employees,
of whom 63% were male and 37% were female. The CIC has always
been an equal opportunity employer. In addition, our employees
come from diverse backgrounds and possess various trade skill
and professional qualifications, ranging from civil engineering,
mechanical engineering, surveying, legal, mediation, arbitration,
accounting, to environmental specialist.

The Council is committed to the employees’ growth and skills
development, which make the organisation thrive. The CIC held a
variety of staff development courses throughout the year.
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In order to advance organisational goals, topical or functional
training programmes were held. These courses include Site
Foreman Safety Training Courses, Safety Training Courses, 5S
Workshops on Construction Site Workers, and 5S Workshops on
Good Housekeeping Practices in Office. In addition, Advanced Client
Service Skills Workshops, as well as Procurement and Supply
Related Training Courses were also offered.

The success of the CIC’s initiatives depends on strong leadership.
Training programmes were tailor-made for the management staff,
covering varied scenarios such as client handling from the legal
perspective, decision making and problem solving, negotiation skills,
innovation, as well as leadership.

The CIC strongly encourages its staff members to continue to hone
their skills, and a Staff Development Scheme was offered to defray
costs of training or education. In 2014, the average number of
training hours per employee was 5.25 per year.

The management took initiatives to energise key business processes
to ensure the effective delivery of services to both internal and
external parties. The Registration Services Review was completed in
20714.This brought about changes to the organisation structure with
the establishment of the Registration Services Division, and to other
relevant business processes and procedures.

. Risk Management and Control

The CIC risk assessment methodology takes into account input
from different levels of the management. Throughout the process,
the risk appetite and concerns of the management are captured.
The final result reflects the relatively vulnerable areas of the CIC.
The management can then formulate risk mitigation measures and
deployment of resources to guard the CIC against risks.
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The risk-based audit approach was being adopted to prioritise
internal audit review projects. During the year, the Internal

Audit reviewed the construction industry uniform operation,
Subcontractor Cooperative Training Scheme operation, and
Construction Industry Resource Centre operation. The review
focused on the compliance with the policies and procedures as well
as any control design improvement opportunities. In addition, in view
of the updated Internal Control — Integrated Framework, published
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO Framework) in 2013, an assessment against the
17 principles stipulated in five areas, namely, control environment,
risk assessment, control activities, information and communication
and monitoring activities was performed.

The Internal Audit handled external complaint cases to review
whether the concerned staff member had diligently followed the CIC
policies and procedures. An independent panel, made up by third
party experts, was convened where necessary to offer impartial
views and advice. The Internal Audit made recommendations to

the management riding on the investigation results with an aim to
enhance the robustness of the internal control systems.

The Internal Audit sought advice from the Corruption Prevention
Department of the ICAC with regard to the latest anti-corruption
practices and their application in the CIC’s policies and business
processes in order to combat the potential risks of corruption.
During the year, the ICAC completed a review assignment on the
placement of the CIC’s trainees. The management would act on the
ICAC recommendations accordingly.

External auditors independently carry out the statutory audits. No
other non-audit work had been engaged during the year.

10. Reporting and Communications

Reporting

As required by the CICO, the CIC shall submit the report on the
activities of the Council, statement of accounts and auditor’s report
to the Secretary for Development within 6 months after the end of its
financial year. In addition, the CIC publishes statistical information in
relation to trade test, training, and workers registration on the CIC’s
website to keep the public informed about the work of the CIC.
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External Communications

The CIC publishes its news through various channels including:

« Updates on CIC’s latest events and activities on the social media

+  Bi-monthly CIC Snapshots sent via email providing updates on
the ongoing initiatives of the CIC

» Quarterly CIC Newsletters report the events and activities
organised by the CIC and industry news in the past three months

» Regular postings in the Executive Director Blog, Twitter, the CIC
Channel on Youtube, and Instagram to share media and news of
the CIC

Exchanges with Local and Overseas Delegations

During the year, the CIC has visited or received the following
delegations:

24/03/2014 %&gﬁ&%gaﬂon

HIHINEE
BB TREEEWNEM B

cENLEABEEZENERANIEE
Facebook#BH + EHAFRH FRIRFER °

- SMEAEBZTMERE KRN
REFSHEENEIIEE °

- BERRCGEEEN) REEESRE A
ABEE) - ARBEERAEE -

. TRERITAERGE  Twitter * HEZ MW
Youtubet® 48 Flinstagram% #7 5l 8. » £
HERBDZHETHRA AL

ERZR 3t Mg SME] S AV M
FR - FZGLHFHEEFTUTIRERE

25/04/2014

Institution of Occupational Safety and Health (The United Kingdom)
BxruazliERsfe (RE)

25/04/2014

Guangzhou Association of Work Safety
BN REEERS

26/05/2014

China Construction Industry Association

FEEEX S

19/08/2014

Construction Management Association of the Republic of China

FEREZZEERE

22/10/2014

Construction Industry Safety Association of Guangdong Province

EREEZELZHE

23/10/2014

Through these meetings, the CIC shared Hong Kong practices and HERELEZIRTOETHBERNBEM
industry knowledge, provided updates on the CIC’s initiatives, and

Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association’s Building Committee

BARTELEHERETERES

exchanged specialised knowledge with its counterparts. SEI:DEA Sl
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The stakeholders support is the key ingredient in achieving the
CIC’s goals. The CIC proactively reached out to our stakeholders and
discussed many issues fruitfully. The meetings held in 2014 are as
follows:

MARCH =H APRIL 9 H

Hong Kong Construction The British Chamber of

Association

ARREERT Industry Group

REmEREREM

JUNE < A

Hong Kong Confederation of Trade Union
BEBIgHR

Commerce’s Construction
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FONENXFHEZEMBEREROKINEA
R RRIHEEROEUNBZSORT
it YRRREHTRERNENERLR
#EITH R - HPIE2014FEHNERERE

MAY £ A

The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers

EREIRMEE

JULY+ A

The Association of Consulting Engineers of
Hong Kong

BRI EMGE

The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
BERERMES

Association of Consultant Quantity Surveyors

EASETHARENAS

AUGUST \ A

Hong Kong Construction Sub-Contractors
Association
BSREED OHEHE

SEPTEMBER 1 B

Hong Kong Construction Materials Association

EREEMHBE AR

Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers
EREEEMEE

Internal communications

The CIC values its staff. With its presence at 18 locations across
Hong Kong, defined communication channels allow for a free

flow of information across all CIC locations to keep all staff better
informed. Town hall meetings were arranged to communicate with
all staff members with regard to policy or organisational changes.
The standing Staff Relations Team also collected staff opinions and
reflect them to the management.

In addition, the internal newsletter CIC Insight records the latest
corporate developments, staff movements, and other relevant
information among staff. The CIC’'s management supports open
and frank exchanges among staff. The management, including
the Executive Director, adopts an open-door policy so that staff
members may discuss important issues face to face. This culture
of transparency is instrumental to the successful implementation
of various measures and the timely rectification of operational
shortcomings.
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Corporate Citizenship

The CIC's members, staff, and trainees had a fruitful year giving back

to the community through a variety of events and activities.

Donations and Charitable Events

The CIC participated in the following events held by charitable
organisations and raised HK$41,000 in 2014.

Event Calendar 2014
2014558 EHE

Charitable Organisation

HEHE

PEAR
FRHATNSEEFEBTRANEDE S
MR KR

BRANZERE
FZE2ETUATHESHBEERNEE &
$#%1541,000/8 7T °

)

Names of Events

EEEHE

Community Chest of Hong Kong
ERNEmE

Skip Lunch Day
RmiTE [#T] B A

Oxfam Hong Kong
e

Oxfam Rice Sale

BERMEA

Medecins Sans Frontieres (MSF)

MSF Day
BEAELR

Community Chest of Hong Kong
Y Nn

Kely Support Group

B S

Heep Hong Society

RS

Charity Mooncake Sale
REAERE

October
+A

Orbis Hong Kong
BB LT — BAENFR

World Sight Day
tREE A

November

+—A

Community Chest of Hong Kong
VN

The Community Chest Green Day

November

+—A

CIC Volunteers

InJune, the CIC volunteers, comprising the CIC’s staff and trainees,
volunteered in the International Dragon Boat Races 2014 in its

sixth consecutive year. The major athletic and heritage event was
organised by the the Hong Kong China Dragon Boat Association, and
the CIC’s cheerful trainees provided on-site support that made the

race day a blast.

The CIC’s staff volunteers served the senior citizens living at the
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Tai Tung Pui Care and Attention Home
in August 2014.0ld, peeling wallpaper was fixed, broken furniture
was repaired, and the activity room and the doors were given a fresh
coat of paint and redecorated by the three teams of enthusiastic

volunteers.

Hong Kong Red Cross
BBALTTE
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One hundred eighty-one staff members and trainees of the CIC gave
the gift of life at the Hong Kong Red Cross’ blood donation drive held
at the Kowloon Bay Training Centre and Sheung Shui Training Centre.

The CIC participated in the Walk for Nature organised by the
WWEF-Hong Kong in November 2014. Our staff members and their
families enjoyed a relaxing day in the stunning wetland reserve of
Mai Po.The fundraiser was also a good lesson on the importance of
saving natural habitats for posterity.

The CIC’'s members were also joined by industry stakeholders for a
good cause. The CIC organised the Construction Industry Sports Day
cum Charity Fun Day and raised HK$84,762 in a day of fun-filled
sports meet.

The CIC was named a “Caring Organisation” by the Hong Kong Council
of Social Services for the fourth consecutive year in recognition of
the CIC’s commitment to corporate social responsibilities.
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Committee Report

Based on the financial results for the year ended 31 December 2014,
total income of the Construction Industry Council (CIC) was $935.70
million (2013:$784.37 million) and increased by $151.33 million,
representing an increase of 19.3% against last year. Total expenditure
for 2014 rose by $141.80 million to $691.10 million (2013:$549.30
million). The operating result for 2014 recorded a surplus of $244.60
million (2013:$235.07 million).

In 2014, there was a $1.23 million loss in other comprehensive income
for the year. The $1.23 million represented a net decrease of $3.62
million in fair value of the available-for-sale securities investments held
at the balance sheet date (2013: increase of $0.90 million) which was
recognised in 2014 in accordance with the requirement of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards;and an impairment loss on available-for-
sale investments of $2.39 million transferred to profit or loss. Combined
with the 2014 surplus of $244.60 million (2013:$235.07 million), total
comprehensive income for 2014 amounted to $243.37 million (2013:
$235.97 million).

Levy income reached a record high of $783.33 million in 2014 (2013:
$664.04 million) and contributed 83.7% of total income. The 18.0% year-
on-year increase of levy income was primarily driven by the increased
levy received from the building and infrastructure construction works in
20714 in private sector, along with the smaller increase in levy received
from the public sector (including port and airport development; and
Mass Transit Railway construction works). Levy assessed on the value
of construction operations in private and public sectors amounted

to $388.33 million (2013: $285.42 million) and $394.64 million (2013:
$378.29 million) representing 49.6% (2013: 43.0%) and 50.4% (2013:
57.0%) of total levy income, respectively. In addition, penalty received on
overdue levy was $0.36 million in 2014 (2013:$0.33 million).
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Investment and interest income for 2014 amounted to $14.82 million
(2013:$9.34 million). The increase in investment and interest income
was due to the higher interest income on time deposits on account
of more funds available for placement; and the higher interest rates
earned on time deposits.

Course fee and related income declined to $22.73 million in 2014 (2013:
$25.93 million) mainly due to the drop in course fees from part-time
courses and commissioned courses.

Trade testing income for 2014 rose to $8.45 million (2013:$5.61 million)
whilst the registration fee income only marginally increased to $9.94
million in 2014 (2013:9.45 million).

Among the total other income of $96.43 million in 2014 (2013:$70.00
million), the major other income was the reimbursement income of trainees’
allowances from the Government under the Investing in Construction
Manpower Scheme (ICMS), which rose to $91.39 million in 2014 (2013:
$63.13 million) as a result of the increase of training places in 2014.

Total expenditure in 2014 was $691.10 million and increased by $141.80
million against $549.30 million in 2013, representing an increase of
25.8%. Major items included:—

1. Staff costs amounted to $294.28 million in 2014 (2013:$263.95
million). The increase of 11.5% in 2014 was mainly due to the annual
salary adjustments; and the increase in temporary headcount to meet
the service requirements in view of the rise in training places in 2014.

2. Training expenses amounted to $184.58 million in 2014 (2013:$132.93
million) representing an increase of 38.9%. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in trainee allowances for selected trades under
the ICMS, and existing courses; and increased training expenses
for collaborative training schemes primarily for the Contractor
Cooperative Training Scheme, and the Sub-contractor Cooperative
Training Scheme.
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3. Workshop expenses increased to $25.76 million in 2014 (2013:$23.84
million) which was in line with the increase in training and trade
testing activities in 2014.

4. Advertising and publicity expenses increased to $31.83 million in 2014
(2013:$26.17 million). The increase of 21.6% in 2014 was mainly due
to higher expenses incurred for recruitment of trainees; promotion
of training schemes; advertising campaigns; and other promotional
activities and events.

5. Depreciation amounted to $39.56 million in 2014 (2013:$28.65
million). The increase of 38.1% in 2014 was in line with the increased
capital expenditure including the renovation at the CIC Aberdeen
Trade Testing and Training Centre and the CIC Kowloon Bay Training
Centre completed in 2014;and the full year impact for renovation of
the CIC Tai Po Training Ground completed in 2013.

6. General and administrative expenses amounted to $99.85 million in
2014 (2013:$64.99 million). The 53.6% increase in 2014 was mainly
duetoa$10.15 million increase in research and studies; $8.78 million
increase in legal and consultancy fees primarily for consultancy on
space utilisation and review of registration service; $5.30 million
funding support increase to the Zero Carbon Building Limited; $5.24
million increases in rental, rates, security and cleaning fees for
expanded office premises and training grounds; and $1.11 million
funding support increase to the Hong Kong Green Building Council
Limited.

7. Capital commitments of $20.36 million in 2014 (2013:$39.70 million)
comprised of contracted capital expenditure mainly for design fee
of mobile device for registration services;implementation of a new
Enterprise Resource Planning System; modernisation works of lifts;
construction project at a new training ground; as well as the enhanced
construction at ZCB.

As of 31 December 2014, the Council held a total of $1,391.95 million
as accumulated fund and reserves, as compared to $1,148.58 million in
2013.

In accordance with the Construction Industry Council Ordinance, the
Council submitted its annual report for the year ended 31 December
2013 to the Secretary for Development in June 2014, together with the
audited financial statements for the same period and the auditor’s
report thereof. These were subsequently tabled at the Legislative
Council.
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CIC Revenue for the Years 2012 to 2014
BIEEEE2012-2014F 2 WA

Amount (HK$’m)
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Other income includes registration fee income, investment and
interest income, reimbursement of trainees’allowances and other
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CIC Expenditure for the Years 2012 to 2014
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CIC Revenue, Expenditure & Surplus for the Years 2012 to 2014
BEEEE2012-2014F 2 WA ~ THR A

Amount (HK$’'m)
SHE (BESEET)
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FE
CIC’s Financial Results and Financial Position (Year ended 31 December)
REXZEMERERMBUAR (B=1283181H)
2014 2013 2012
HK$m HK$m HK$m
BESEET AKsasaT ABBIEET
Income YA 935.7 784.4 575.0
Expenditure X H (691.1) (549.3) (397.5)
Surplus for the year FERER 244.6 235.1 177.5
Other comprehensive income for the year 4& E 4R A U
Net (decrease) increase in fair value "ENFEFE (3.6) 0.9 10.7
Impairment loss transferred to REEREHRMEEH D
profit or loss B EE 2.4 - -
(1.2) 0.9 10.7
Total comprehensive income for the year HFE4RE WAL 243.4 236.0 188.2
NET ASSETS FEE 1,392.0 1,148.6 909.7
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Terms of Reference

1. To review and monitor safety performance of the construction industry.

2. To review and enhance the mechanism of safety management.

3. To identify and recommend measures for improving safety performance to CIC.
4. To promote adoption of the improvement measures by the industry.

5. To nurture a safety culture for the industry.
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Committee Report

Since the beginning of 2014, Committee of Construction Site Safety
was renamed “Committee on Construction Safety” (Com-CSY). The new
name endorses a widen vision of the CIC on construction safety and
follows with an expanding scope of responsibilities for Com-CSY.

Throughout the year, Com-CSY has issued three publications of
various kinds on different topics. Safety Alert No. 001/14 Fire Safety

on Construction Sites was published to remind the responsible parties
on fire safety in the construction sites or renovation projects. The
Guidelines on Planking Arrangement for Providing Working Platforms on
Bamboo Scaffolds was published to provide practical guidelines on the
roles and responsibilities of the main contractors and subcontractors
in provision of suitable working platforms on bamboo scaffolds. The
Guidance Notes on How to Manage the Maintenance Works carried out
by Registered Lift/Escalator Contractor was jointly published by the
CIC and Electrical and Mechanical Services Department to enhance
the knowledge of the responsible persons in managing their lifts and
escalators under the Lifts and Escalators Ordinance (Cap. 618).

Three posters that provide simple and clear messages were also
published to draw the attention of industry stakeholders in three

major areas on construction safety: Working at Height Safety, Safety for
Construction Work Carried Out On, Adjacent To or Over Water — Prevention
of Fallinto Water as well as Work Safety in Confined Spaces.

To multiply the effect of the safety publications in enhancing the
awareness of industry practitioners, technical seminars were organised
by the Com-CSY throughout the year. Thanks to the overwhelming
response of the first Seminar on the Use of Reduced Voltage Hand Tools
in Construction Site held in December 2013, a second seminar was
organised on 16 January this year on the same topic. On 12 February,
atechnical seminar on safety of lift shafts works was held to promote
the Guidelines on Safety of Lift Shaft Works: Volume 3 — Throughout

the Occupation Stage of Building published by the CIC, while on 24 July
another technical seminar was held to promote the safety practice for
mobile crane operations. The last technical seminar held in 2014 was
on Construction Work Safety Near Water on 4 December to provide
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recommendations with quick reference to the frontline construction
personnel on the safety measures of construction work safety near
water. All seminars were well received with excellent participation and
positive feedback.

On the other hand, a new Task Group on Application of Innovative Design

to Enhance Construction Safety was established in June 2014 to explore,
develop and implement innovative design to enhance construction safety.
Its Terms of Reference duties include: (a) to deliberate the feasibility of

the application of innovative design(s) to support safety-at-work practice
in construction sites; (b) to explore the possibility to test and evaluate the
innovative design at the CIC training centre and/or in the construction sites;
(c) to work out a suitable business and system implementation plan that
pursuing industry buy-in if possible; and (d) to develop the promotional
strategy for the captioned innovative design where appropriate.

Construction Safety Week has long been a key event for CIC and the
Industry. For the third consecutive year, the CIC co-organised with the
Development Bureau the Construction Safety Week in 2014 under the
theme “Workers Health and Safety Leadership”to promote the message
of “Zero Accident” to the industry and the general public. On 26 May,

the Hon Mr. LEUNG Chun-ying, the HKSAR Chief Executive, joined 833
construction industry practitioners at a “Ba Duan Jing” Qigong exercise
session which was on the same day recognisd as a new Guinness World
Record of the “Largest Qigong Lesson” by far. Overwhelming support was
received from more than 42 organisations, covering a wide spectrum of
the Industry.

Other Construction Safety Week associated promotional activities
including a construction safety promotional video, the Construction
Safety Brainstorming Workshop, the Safety Pal, the Zero Accident
Ambassador Award, the Innovative Safety Initiative Award and the
Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme. As we continue to build on
the hard work of the previous years, we succeeded in making headway
this year and eventually landed on a higher level of accomplishment.

For Com-CSY, 2014 is a year of evolvement. While the construction
industry in Hong Kong were facing with the ever tightening work
schedules and acute shortage of labour, Com-CSY is committed to work
even closer with industry stakeholders to keep up with the construction
safety standards and contribute to a better construction industry in
Hong Kong and work towards zero accident in construction sites.

i Working at Height Safe’g

Don'tunderestimate the sk of working above
‘ground - even a few metres can be fatal.
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Committee Report

At the beginning of the year, the name of the Committee changed from

“Environment and Technology” to “Environment, Innovation and Technology’,

by which the CIC's new direction in construction innovation and productivity
enhancement through the use of advanced technology is emphasised.
2014 was a fruitful year for the Committee on Environment, Innovation and
Technology (Com-EIT). With tremendous support from the members, a
number of tasks were completed and new initiatives were generated.

Under the recommendation from the Working Group on Roadmap

for Building Information Modelling (BIM) Implementation, 2014 was
ayear to increase awareness of BIM and promote the benefits of the
technology to the wider industry and was thus named BIM Year 2014.
Collaborated with a number of local and international stakeholder
organisations, around 40 initiatives targeting different levels of industry
practitioners were organised, included but not limited to various
workshops, seminars, events, trainings, and media exposure activities.
Some of the key ones included the BIM Year Grand Launch Ceremony,
Project Clients Summit for the Development of BIM Implementation
Strategies, BIM Manager Training, BIM Excellence Award 2014, BIM
Exhibition in trade fair, HKIBIM-CIC Conference 2014, etc.

To establish a set of BIM specifications and common practice for the
industry’s reference, a consultancy was committed to prepare the BIM
Standards (Phase One) in March 2014 by the Com-EIT and is now in

the process of drafting four sets of standards which include: (a) Project
Execution Plan, (b) Modelling Methodology, (c) Level of Development and
Details, and (d) Component Presentation Style and Data Organisation.

A series of stakeholder forums have been held to collect views and
feedback from the industry. The project is expected to be completed

in early 2015 and a number of training programs will be organised to
promote the use of the standards.

A publication named Roadmap for Building Information Modelling
Strategic Implmentation in Hong Kong’s Construction Industry was
released in September 2014 with the aim to list out imminent actions
needed to be taken.

Committee and Board Reports
EEZEEREEERE

EEZEERE
BREMEMZEERNFNSERRE - 8IF R
BRMEREER®] B#ATEENEMERTAE
BRERIFIAR KA ERMIRAEES - 2HRE
RERRASE  RE - A REMEREZES
(BEZE®) J‘E’\ZOMi;—E}ﬂETyIEIf’E Wi
HTHIESR - AIEERER -

BEEEREE SRR EE T/ EmiE:s
EEEZEEH2014F T A 12014355 BB #
FlUIRSEREEEEEEBRNRA  F8
LERAANLTRBEBRIMNITE - SE5EL8 g8
SRR ERFOEEAE  ATRBENZE
ﬁﬁ%;ﬁ%mm1£@ BIEIES - 5
g OEE 1B UARBEREEEIES - EF—
WIE&@@%@%EM$H¢@@%*§E@
SESRBNHTERERETIIES  BEE
BERBREIEASE - 20148 BEEE SRR
ﬁ HEGTRREECEERES 828
EEEREe REEXHREMIE20145E -

BT HEREDEEEBERNEY —EEEE

BEBOFBMENTFER2E  BELZEERN
zouﬁsﬁl%%T KB R G BB HAIBIM
1ZAE o I IE R B P B ) D 1R E S B3 -
(a) BB #1TEME - (b) BE A EERET A
S5 (o) BUEMABERRE - U (d) IR R

X BERER A RS T% o JEHN - EREZEEIN
BN — RN ERE  WEXEANBELE
B o fBREEAE fﬁi.ﬁrﬁf\zowsi%ﬂmﬁ e By
HIFR 2B A ARITE -
LE(EARGERBIEHITEEESBRRER
[B) 72014F 98 Hhk - EEFRFEEZHRNANE
BITH -




Committee and Board Reports
EEZEEREEERE

On the other hand, the Task Force on River Sand Substitutes Research
has finished all key testing for defining a set of specifications for
aggregates for mortar and is now in the process of drafting the
specifications which is expected to be released in 2015.

The Task Force on Schematic Design for Application for Radio-frequency
Identification (RFID), GPS, and Sensor Technology in Monitoring the
Movement of Construction Waste has explored and studied a number

of technical options to monitor construction waste movement. After
considering the cost, system complexity, ease of use, data privacy and
space requirement, the Task Force suggested that RFID device could
provide the most cost effective solution to better manage illegal truck
dump.

The CIC Carbon Labelling Scheme launched in 2013 aims to provide a
benchmark on the carbon footprint of construction products for the
industry to select materials with lower carbon footprints. Building

on the momentum since launch, the phase 2 research of the Scheme
was started in March 2014. Ten new construction materials added
to the scope of research include concrete, timber, stainless steel and
aggregates, etc.

The inaugural CIC Innovation Award will be launched in 2015 to
encourage construction innovation development in both the industry
and academia. Other new initiatives planned by Com-EIT for 2015
include the survey on the potential utilisation of prefabrication yard in
Hong Kong; the new proposal on overall strategy for management and
reduction of construction and demolition waste in Hong Kong; and the
BIM standards to facilitate the submission of general building plans to
statutory authorities and concerned departments.

The CIC will continue to collaborate with BIM stakeholders to organise
anumber of activities throughout 2015 to promote the industry-wide
adoption of BIM. The theme of BIM in Year 2015 will be “BIM Training,
Intelligence Sharing, and Recognition of BIM Professional’s Qualification”

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014

S—HE AP BERBAREENMTRADHE
RERITE-—ERBMTEENEIERH  RIE
BRARRMS - FBETHE2015F &K -

EREREILERT BERERIER Y - 23R
REEM RS R ARSI RFTAEERE
ERFEIAR LM R - EEIKARE
AmERE - 2R BROLRERERE
K HE/NMERS BRI A R E S AKRAE
MERHVABE T ER - AR MEIRIDAIA B = -

FER2013FEHENMIRHEE ERERE
miE R R - HEFIRE KT ¥
Ko EZBERIARA2014F3IARR - HEHE
EMHEHMALLEE - BIFERLT - KK T&
o BRE -

BEZEERN2015F R EEREREZEH
% SIEEALSMATERIFEES N - 2t
KR 20165 ETTHYZRIA B BRI BAER TS
ZATIEAE - B KRB RESIBIRER
HVEEEB IR IR 2 AT - U RARSRE BEEIRE
BhBIADEE MR MARRARIFI2 X —ARZEEE R -

FEMEEEEEEEERFNEAEF  £2015
FRERZHEHNESERBZRAEEEER
B 20152 EEERBFNTIER [ERERE
BRI BN FMERESEREXABRNR
AR -



Committee and Board Reports
EEZEEREEERE

Committee on Procurement and Subcontracting

RBRIBSHEREZRS

Membership List
Chairman
Ir CHEW Tai-chong

Members
CIC Members

Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan

Mr. CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony (Until 21 September 2014)
Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick

Ms. Melissa Kaye PANG

Ir Kevin POOLE

Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike

Mr. WU Shek-chun, Wilfred

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)

Co-opted Members

Mrs. Jennie AU YEUNG /ndependent Commission Against Corruption

Sr CHEUNG Tat-tong Chairperson of Working Group on the Review of the
Implementation of the Dispute Resolution Mechanism

Mr. CHUNG Ling-so Construction Site Workers General Union

Mr. Steve GRIFFIN Chairperson of Task Force on Employer-Procured Insurance
Policies in Construction Contracts

Sr HO Kwok-kwan, Thomas Chairperson of Special Group on On-Demand Bonds
Mr. HO Sing-mo Chairperson of Task Force on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts
and Ad-Hoc Working Group on Procurement Fact Sheets

Mr. LEUNG Hing-fung The Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre

Mr. LEUNG Lap-ki, Francis Development Bureau

Ir LEUNG Wai-ho, Alfred The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

Dr. Andrew SIMPSON Chairperson of Task Force on Competition Law

Sr TANG Ki-cheung Chairperson of Task Force on Standard Contract Provisions
for Domestic Subcontracts

Mr. TSE Chun-yuen Chairperson of Task Force on Enhancements to
Subcontractor Registration Scheme

Mr. WONG Sing-lam Contractor’s Authorised Signatory Association

Mr. Franklin YU The Hong Kong Institute of Architects

Terms of Reference

1. Toexamine current practices on procurement in relation to project planning, tendering,

contract administration and site supervision and recommend good practices to
improve the quality and cost effectiveness in delivery of construction contracts.

2. To operate and develop the Subcontractor Registration Scheme (SRS).

3. To raise the professional standard of subcontractors through providing
value-added services under the SRS.

4. To examine current arrangements for selection and management of
subcontractors and recommend improvements.

5. To promote use of written subcontracts.
6. To promote good practices relating to dispute resolution.
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Committee Report

The new Committee on Procurement and Subcontracting (Com-PNS)
was formed in February 2014 by merging the former Committee on

Procurement and Committee on Subcontracting into a single committee.

This new committee, comprising members from across the supply
chain, is committed to work with stakeholders to ensure a healthy
development of the procurement and subcontracting system in Hong
Kong’s construction industry.

On fostering a healthy procurement system, considerable progress was
made and a series of publications was published on the CIC website in
2014, including:

1. aProcurement Alert on the Use of On-Demand Performance Bonds in
Construction Contracts, giving recommendations on good practices
in relation to the use of on-demand bonds in construction contracts
as well as reminding industry stakeholders to act in a responsible
manner when asking for on-demand bonds;

2. aProcurement Fact Sheet on Owner-Controlled Insurance
Programme (OCIP) in Construction Contracts, providing useful
information on OCIR, including its benefits and limitations, critical
success factors and its development and application in Hong Kong
and overseas;and

3. Reference Materials on the Selection of Consultants, giving
recommendations on good practices in relation to the procurement
of design and other consultants for construction projects.

Taking the initiatives of promoting the use of collaborative contracts
further, the CIC signed a Memorandum of Understanding for
collaboration with the NEC Contracts United Kingdom in October 2014.
The main purpose of the collaboration is to work together to raise
awareness of the construction community to the increasing adoption
of collaborative type contracts, of which NEC is one. The Task Force

on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts has also completed the drafting

of the Reference Materials on Frequently Asked Questions on NEC3
Collaborative Contracts and the Com-PNS has agreed to submit the
document for legal vetting before seeking approval from the Council for
publication in 2015.
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The CIC has in recent years undertaken various activities to represent
the views of the construction industry in the development of Hong Kong’s
first competition law, including the submission of views this year on the
Competition Commission’s draft Guidelines, and to explain the effect

of the new Competition Ordinance to industry stakeholders. To further
raise the awareness of the construction industry on the Competition
Ordinance which is expected to come into full implementation in 2015,
the Executive Director of the CIC made presentations at the following
international events to speak about the importance of competition law
compliance in the construction sector:

+ 3rd Hong Kong: Global Competition Law Forum Asia on 27 June 2014
20146 27 BRTNE=EEE + TMRLEFERE

« ALB Hong Kong In-House Legal Summit on 12 September 2014
2014F9 A 12 ARTMALBE B R NANAREMRE S

« Asian Competition Forum 10th Annual Conference on
8 — 9 December 2014.
201412 ASAEIR BTN R tRETMNBRFEE FmiE

Awork plan of the Task Force on Competition Law for 2014/2015 was
also developed;and as part of the work plan, a Competition Law mini-
site will be launched at the CIC webpage and a series of industry-
specific competition law publications, such as Case Summaries and
Frequently Asked Questions, will be prepared for publication in 2015.

On fostering a healthy subcontracting system, a new Task Force on
Enhancements to Subcontractor Registration Scheme (SRS) was
setupin May 2014 with the objectives of reviewing holistically the
strategic position and recommending enhancements to the operational
framework of the SRS as well as identifying positive incentive(s) to
encourage subcontractors' registration and wider adoption of the SRS.
As part of its Terms of Reference, this new Task Force will also study

the feasibility of categorising Registered Subcontractors into different
classes under the SRS, review the need for introducing a mandatory
registration scheme, identify motives and explore value-adding services
to encourage Registered Subcontractors to upgrade themselves and
build up their capacities, as well as consult relevant stakeholders on
enhancement proposals as appropriate.

There should be a suite of standard forms of domestic subcontract
containing fair, equitable and balanced terms for easy adoption in
domestic subcontracting between the main contractor and the first
tier subcontractor and between the subcontractor and the lower tier
subcontractor. The Task Force on Standard Contract Provisions for
Domestic Subcontracts has been working on the standard forms of
domestic subcontract, taking into account existing good practices in
the industry and the principles set out in the Guidelines on Standard
Forms of Domestic Subcontracts for Basic Trade published by the then
Provisional Construction Industry Coordination Board. Following the
industry consultation on the draft in 2014, it is expected that the final
version will be available by mid-2015.
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Committee on Productivity and Research

EENRMAEEZEEEZES

Membership List
Chairman

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher

Members
CIC Members

Mr. CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony (Until 21 September 2014)

Ir CHAN Siu-hung (Until 9 November 2014)

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Ir Prof. CHU Pui-kwan, Reuben

Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen

Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun

Mr. WU Shek-chun, Wilfred

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)

Co-opted Members
Mr. CHIN Chi-keung, Cyras The Hong Kong Construction Association
Mr. SHEA Tat-chi, Ringo The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors
Mr. WONG Chung-leung Development Bureau

Terms of Reference
1. To compile and update key performance indicators.

2. To examine current productivity level in the Hong Kong construction industry

by introducing measurable indicators for different work trades.

3. To benchmark or set standard for the productivity of construction process.

4. To provide statistics in relation to productivity.

5. To recommend strategies to the Council and Boards/Committees for
enhancing the industry’s productivity and competitiveness

6. To co-ordinate and promote construction research and development and

facilitate practical application of research results by the construction
industry.
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Committee Report

The Committee on Productivity and Research (Com-PNR) was
established in 2014 with the mission to lead and transform the Hong
Kong construction industry to become more productive, and hence
more competitive. The Com-PNR aims to benchmark construction
productivity and to identify drivers and opportunities for improvement.
The following four consultancy projects focusing on improving the
productivity of the Hong Kong construction industry were initiated by

the Com-PNR with the purpose to bring the industry to a new level with

higher efficiency and productivity.

1. Assessing the Performance of the Hong Kong Construction
Industry, Key Performance Indicators (KPI): An International

Comparison

To review the performance of the construction industry in Hong Kong,

a set of KPIs covering the areas of productivity, health and safety,
manpower and dispute resolution was established and published

by the CIC. In order to formulate a forward-looking strategic plan for
the industry to strive for its continuous improvement, the Com-PNR
decided to expand the scope of the existing KPIs assessment to the
international level with an aim to advance the competitiveness of the
Hong Kong construction industry by benchmarking its performance

against other countries.

2. AComprehensive Productivity Appraisal of the Hong Kong
Construction Industry

Facing the challenges of manpower shortage and the increasing global

competition, it isimperative for our industry to elevate its efficiency
and competitiveness in a holistic way. In view of this, the practices,
procedures and standards currently adopted in the industry will be
comprehensively and systematically reviewed and evaluated.
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3. Integrating Constructability in Project Planning and Design 3.

Acrucial factor affecting construction efficiency and productivity

is the constructability of a project, particularly in the case of a
building development. The Construct for Excellence published in
2001 suggested that more integrated project delivery processes
should be implemented in the Hong Kong construction industry. It
is anticipated that the time, cost and quality performance of the
Hong Kong construction industry will be improved by enhancing the
constructability of construction projects in Hong Kong.

4. Benchmarking the Construction Trade ProductivityinHong 4.

Kong

Trade productivity has been considered as
one of the determining factors that affects
the progress of any construction project.
Establishing benchmark indicators at

the trade level would be valuable for
builders to measure and evaluate trade
productivity on a common platform so as
to help raise the overall productivity and
competitiveness of the industry. |NNOVAT|[]N
The Com-PNR has finalised the scopeof |1 NS TRIG [0
the above four consultancy projects and it RESEARGH JOURNAL 2018

is scheduled to commence the projects in e
2015.

On the other hand, the inaugural issue

of CIC research journal Innovation in

Construction (iICON) was published in

August 2014 to advocate innovations and

disseminate valuable outcomes generated from the CIC funded
research projects.
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Objections Board

RERHEEZES

Membership List
Convenor
Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun

Members
CIC Members

Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
Ms. Melissa Kaye PANG

Terms of Reference

1. To determine objections to levy and surcharge made under section 55 of
Construction Industry Council Ordinance (CICO) and made under section 29
of Construction Workers Registration Ordinance.

Board Report

By virtue of section 56 of the CICO, the Objections Board has the power
to confirm, cancel or reduce the levy or surcharge. During the year
2014, there was one objection case lodged by a contractor on the levy
assessed by the CIC. Having considered its grounds of objection, the
levy for the objection case was confirmed by the Objections Board.
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Construction Industry Training Board

BEXIREES

Membership List
Chairman
Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick

Members

Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert
Ms. HUNG Yee-man

Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
Mr. LAM Kai-chung, Albert
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert
Mr. LI Chi-leung

Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy
Mr. MAK Tak-ching

Mr. NG Kwok-kwan

Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung
Mr. SZE Kyran

Prof. TAM Chi-ming

Mr. TSE Chun-yuen

Terms of Reference

1. To provide training courses for the construction industry.

2. To establish and maintain industrial training centres for the construction
industry.

3. To assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in the
placement of persons who have completed training courses provided for the
construction industry.

4. To assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any kind of
work involving or in connection with the construction industry, to conduct
examinations and tests, to issue or award certificates of attendance or
competence, and to establish the standards to be achieved in respect of any
such work.

5. To advise on manpower planning and development for construction
personnel at professional, supervisory and craftsman levels.

6. To foster an ethical culture.
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Board Report

The construction industry in Hong Kong is enjoying flourishing
development with construction expenditure of both public and private
sectors being forecasted to remain at a high level in the next few years.
To cater for the manpower demand of the industry, the Construction
Industry Training Board (CITB) started to study the manpower of
construction industry in 2008 to forecast the manpower situation of
workforce ranging from workers to professionals. The report of CIC
Manpower Forecasting Model on Workers, and the Report on Site
Supervisory Personnel, Technicians & Professionals would be updated
annually and published on the CIC’s website.

Training places offered by the CITB kept on increasing over the past

few years to cope with the industry’s development. The number of
graduates in 2014 was at a record high, comprising around 4,900 full-
time graduates who had attained the skill level of semi-skilled workers
and more than 200 graduates achieved the competency level of site
supervisory personnel / technicians. In addition, the CIC also provided
part-time courses for over 75,600 in-service practitioners of the
industry. Apart from offering Basic Craft Courses, Supervisor / Technician
Programme and Adult Short Courses, the CIC joined hands with the
industry and launched a number of cooperative training schemes from

“Build Your Life

Mentorship
Programme”
[2E AR R A&
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Construction Industry Training Board
REXIREES

2010 onwards to train new blood; partners include main contractors,
sub-contractors, trade associations and labour unions. As regards the
government funding of a total of 320 million dollars in 2010 and 2012 for
CIC to implement Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme,
and Enhanced Construction Supervisor / Technician Training Scheme
and other measures to provide extra subsidies for those trainees in
trades with a strong demand of manpower, more than 6,000 trainees
were trained as of November 2014, one month ahead of schedule.

This year, the CIC continued to implement Apprenticeship Subsidy
Scheme, encouraging graduates of Basic Craft Courses and Supervisor
/Technician Programme to sign a contract of apprenticeship with their
employers to stay in the industry to pursue a steady career development.
CIC also subsidised first-year E&M students of Diploma in Vocational
Education Programme of Vocational Training Council to encourage them
to enter the E&M field of the construction industry as an apprentice
upon completion of their first year of study.

While strengthening the provision of training, the CIC made
arrangements for the amendments to Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 583). Work included consolidating trade testing venues,
increasing the trade testing capacity and encouraging workers with
skills to register as semi-skilled workers or skilled workers by taking
trade tests. Works for trade tests of a number of newly added trades
were also embarked on. Furthermore, for the government-funded
Subsidy for Trade Test, over 8,700 workers, above the original head count
target of 6,000, were subsidised to take the tests as of late 2014.
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Construction Industry Training Board
REXIREES

Dreams Come True,a TV drama series aimed at enhancing the RIBFAREFNUEENEE R MEEN (4
professional image of construction industry and its practitioners, BHEEX) $#15RIFOUAR - ERINSIRTDF
received a good rating and aroused the interest of young people to BAHRGEEXENHR - RECEBERBRE
join the construction industry. The CIC worked with the Development BEAREE BN (BAEHEX)  NEEA

Bureau and RTHK to produce the second episode of Dreams Come True, ~ FBHATERFEEHEBEGEHYAHBEEKE - 5
depicting the challenges to be faced by four youngsters after entering Oh - BN ARNEHL [BEANERMRETE]
the construction industry and their growth. In addition, the CIC launched ~ EEATHRIENBEEEEBANERIES
a“Build Your Life Mentorship Programme” this year to provide traineesof I * JIRE BR TIEBE R A RE L INEFEE 1 -
Basic Craft Courses with a better understanding of actual work situation ~ #¢if BB NAEEE R -

and enhance their competitiveness with the support and guidance of

career mentors, which in turn enabled the trainees to stay in the industry

to further their development.

The CITB would continue to forge closer ties with the industry, enhance BEFIIRZESKEERERRFTIHE
training and trade testing efforts and implement measures that would MeRIF A TERHE TIE - RIEHBBRESE
facilitate the long-tem development of the industry. REFRAOEE

Launching Ceremony of Dreams Come True

(B HBEX) BuE®R

Dreams Come True Il
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CONSTRUCTION WORKERS
REGISTRATION BOARD

BEXTAGMEES

Construction Workers Registration Board

BEXTAZMERS

Membership List
Chairman
Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

Members

Mr. CHAN Chi-hin

Ir CHAN Chi-ming

Ir CHAN Loong, Geoffrey
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan
Dr. HO Hok-keung, Paul
Mr. HO Wai-wah

Dr. KUANG Jun-shang

Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen

Ir Dr. LAU Chi-keung,Jackson
Mr. LI Chi-leung

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence
Mr. PANG Long

Ir PANG Yiu-hung, Eric
Mr. WONG Siu-han, Rex
Ms. YU Po-mei, Clarice

Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo
Mr.YU Wai-wai

Terms of Reference

1. To set the qualification requirements for registration or renewal of
registration.

2. Toact on and discharge tasks in regard to the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance, which include inspection of construction sites,
conducting construction workers registration, handling review and appeal
cases relating to workers registration, maintaining the Daily Attendance
Records of construction sites, and so on.

3. To perform and exercise such other functions or powers as are imposed on it
by the Construction Industry Council.
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Board Report

Since its establishment in January 2013, the Construction Workers
Registration Board (CWRB) has been making efforts to ensure the
smooth and effective implementation of the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance (“CWRO”) (Cap. 583) and the administration

of the registration of construction workers. A total of six sub-
committees and task forces established under the board have been
working in full swing to bring expertise to the policymaking process
and make recommendations to address the matters arising from the
implementation of the CWRO and registration system as well as on the
issues concerning the industry.

Workers Registration

From 29 December 2005 to 31 December 2014, Workers Registration
Service Points received a total of 485,569 applications and issued
485,287 registration cards after the qualifications of applicants had
been verified. As of 31 December 2014, there were 341,634 valid
registered workers.

CIC Service Centre (Sheung Wan)
BEERERBH O (£R)

More Convenient

The establishment of CIC Service Centres respectively at Nam Cheong
MTR Station in January 2014, another at Sheung Wan adjacent to the
Sheung Wan MTR Station in November 2014 offer more flexible and
convenient services to construction workers applying for registration.
Information about various training courses and the construction
industry is also available at the two CIC Service Centres.

Construction Workers Registration Board
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Construction Workers Registration Board
BEXT AGEMESS

Better Services

To strive for service excellence, CIC continued to make improvements to
the operational processes and implement various measures to enhance
the workers registration services which include:

« Free Mailing Service - providing free delivery of registration cards by
mail so that workers are not required to appear in person to collect
the new cards;

+ Same-Day Card Issuance - developing a new computerised
registration system which can issue the registration card on the
same day of application with prior appointment through telephone
booking;

CONSTRUCTION|INDUSTRY/COUNCIL'
75 €™ 5 o
2 kES

« Outreaching Service - going to construction sites to renew the
registration of workers on the site so that workers do not need
to take leave for visiting Workers Registration Service Points to
complete the renewal applications; and

Outreaching registration
renewal service

INREERS

_—

+ One-stop Shop Service - workers who attended the CIC safety
training course can submit applications for registration on the same
day and at the same place.
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Construction Workers Registration (Amendment)
Ordinance 2014

Subsequent to the implementation of Phase One Prohibition under

the CWRO in September 2007 forbidding unregistered construction
workers from carrying out construction works on construction sites,

to implement the remaining phase of Prohibition, an industry-wide
consultation was jointly organised by the CIC and the Development
Bureau to finalise the proposed amendments to the CWRO. The
“Construction Workers Registration (Amendment) Bill 2014” was passed
in the Legislative Council in December 2014 for commencement on 1
April 2015.

To prepare for the implementation of the remaining phase of Prohibition,

the following task forces under the Construction Workers Registration
Board were tasked to steer the necessary work in different areas:

+ Sub-committee on Registration Matters
«  Sub-committee on Senior Workers Assessment
+ Task Force on Construction Workers Registration System

+ Task Force on Promotion of the Remaining Phase of CWRO

The Sub-committee on Registration Matters proposed reasonable
measures for work under “instruction and supervision”, exemption
arrangements for emergency construction work and small scale
construction work. On-site trials will be carried out in 2015 to examine
the effectiveness of the proposed measures and the Code of Practice
will be published to provide guidelines on procedural requirements for
“instruction and supervision”and exempted works.

Upon the implementation of the “designated workers for designated
skills” provision, workers will be forbidden from undertaking
construction works of trades unless they are relevant trade-registered
workers or under the instruction and supervision of the relevant trade-
registered workers. To ensure smooth transition of senior workers, a
one-off arrangement of senior workers registration was introduced

for workers with at least 10 years' relevant work experience to register
as registered skilled workers under specified conditions. The Sub-
committee on Senior Workers Assessment was mandated to explore
and establish an effective mechanism to assess the qualification and
skill level of senior workers to help them prepare for registering as
skilled workers of the relevant trades before the “designated workers for
designated skills” provision comes into effect.

Construction Workers Registration Board
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Construction Workers Registration Board
BREXTAGZMESS

The Task Force on Construction Workers Registration System (CWRS)
continued to oversee and monitor the progress towards the development
of the CWRS. The first phase of the development was successfully
completed and launched in October 2014 to improve and streamline the
procedures of issuing workers registration cards, including same-day
card issuance. The subsequent phase would enable:

« the CIC to capture workers attendance records more quickly and
accurately for effective manpower planning and training;

« toallow workers to check their own attendance records easily; and

- toalleviate the workload of contractors in handling and submitting
workers attendance records.

CWRS is being developed with a new card reading device running on
Android platform with featuring functions of waterproof, dustproof and
high temperature resistance, as well as interface to authentication
installation. Itis anticipated that the new registration system, coupled
with the new registration card and reading device would provide a more
comprehensive and personalised service to workers as well as the
industry.

The Task Force on Promotion of the Remaining Phase of CWRO was
formed to co-ordinate the promotion of amendments to the CWRO
(including senior workers registration arrangement, etc.) to ensure
various sectors in the construction industry have a good comprehension
of the amendments as well as letting the industry stakeholders prepare
sufficiently before the remaining phase of the Prohibition coming into
effect.

Analysis on Construction Workers Manpower Data

The Task Force on Data Analysis conducted three telephone surveysin
20714 to gauge employment situation and manpower supply in respect
of various common trades in the construction industry. Each survey
covered approximately 10,000 workers from twenty-four common
construction trades.

Moreover, the Task Force on Reviewing the Outflow of Construction
Workers was established to investigate, collect and analyse the causes
and reasons leading to workers leaving or remaining inactive in the
construction field and the incentives that could be proposed to attract
inactive registered workers or those who left to rejoin the construction
industry.
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According to the registration figures, workers with valid or expired
provisional registration account for a considerable number in the
market. These workers may possess pre-requisite trade skills or
extensive work experience to attain the qualification to be skilled
workers before the implementation of the Phase Two Prohibition under
the CWRO. The Specified Training Courses (STCs) were launched as an
interim measure to provide a series of courses covering 67 trades for
workers with valid or expired provisional registration. Registered skilled
workers (provisional) are eligible to apply for registration as registered
skilled workers after completing the STCs of respective trades and
passing the assessment. As of 31 December 2014, 8,645 workers
completed the STCs with an average passing rate of 91%.

Inspection and Enforcement

To ensure that the relevant parties have observed the statutory
requirements stipulated in the CWRO, the inspection team conducted
regular enforcement inspections at different construction sites. In
2014,the inspection team conducted 16,672 times and 1,806 times of
inspection of registration card and construction site respectively. Among
allinspections, 11 construction sites failed to install card-reading device,
6 sites failed to provide Register of Statement and 127 sites failed to
make timely submission of daily attendance record (DAR), which involved

-
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Construction Workers Registration Board
BEXT AGMEES

931 DARs. Atotal of 101 prosecutions were initiated. Since Phase One
Prohibition under CWRO came into effect on 1 September 2007, there was
indeed a continuous improvement in the non-compliance situation and it
was the second consecutive year in which no worker was found carrying
out construction work on a construction site without a valid registration
card. Since 2014, the Secretariat adopted a new strategic method of site
selection for random compliance check of DAR submissions in order to
step up the enforcement against the non-compliance situation. The new
method led to a significant increase in the non-compliance ratio but it
does not necessarily mean the non-compliance situation has worsened.

The inspection team not only conducted surprise inspections during
normal office hours but also at night and on weekends. During
inspection, the inspection team also took the opportunity to seek the
assistance of the frontline staff of contractors to distribute leaflets and
convey the latest news to their construction workers. The latest news
relating to the contents of the amended CWRO, new service points for
workers registration, and rebate of registration fee for early renewal was
conveyed this year.

Workers Welfare

CIC Scholarships for Family Members of Registered
Construction Workers 2014

To recognise the contributions of construction workers to the development
of Hong Kong society and at the same time providing guidance and
support to foster their children to achieve their academic potential, the
CIC was proud to continue the CIC Scholarships for Family Members of
Registered Construction Workers in 2014. With the highest number of
applications ever recorded over the past years, 20 scholarships had been
awarded with the number of outstanding and merit awards increased

to benefit more students achieving outstanding academic results in

the HKDSE. In addition, extra scholarship was awarded to youngsters
admitted to disciplines related to the fields of construction or engineering
in local universities or tertiary institutions. A ceremony for presenting the
awards to the winners was held in September 2014 at ZCB.
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Pilot Medical Examination Scheme for Construction Workers

The Pilot Medical Examination Scheme for Construction Workers was
launched by the CIC in March 2014 to provide registered workers with
basic medical examination at a subsidised fee of HK$10 in order to
understand their health conditions and to ensure they are physically
fit for work. By the end of December 2014, 2,855 workers and 97
construction sites participated in the scheme.

Other Welfare for Registered Construction Workers

A welfare programme was launched in October 2014 to offer immediate
benefits such as special discounts and promotions to registered
construction workers for purchasing consumer goods or healthcare
services at a number of designated local merchants.

The Way Forward 2015

Itis anticipated that 2015 will be a challenging year to prepare for the
implementation of “designated workers for designated skills” under the
CWRO in April 2017. In the coming year, the CWRB will continue to strive
for the service excellence and improvement in workers registration
system;to ensure the construction workers registration scheme under
the CWRO can be launched smoothly as well as to carry out its duties
and responsibility in enforcement and prosecution.

CWRB will closely monitor the effectiveness of the implementation

of senior workers registration arrangement, which is the initiative

that plays an essential role in taking forward the remaining phase of
Prohibition to be effective in April 2017. Furthermore, the development
of the new construction workers registration system aimed at capturing
more reliable data on labour supply through the use of innovative
technology to facilitate manpower planning and training will be
completed by end of 2015. Last but not least, providing an even better
quality services to the construction workers and stakeholders is our
utmost goal next year.

Construction Workers Registration Board
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SPONSORED AND
SUPPORTED EVENTS
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Events Sponsored by the CIC

ESSBUMrED

2014

2014

2014

2014

24.01.2014

14.03.2014

20-21.03.2014

23.03.2014

28.03.2014

20.03.2014
& 05.2014

Quality Building Award 2014
BEEEEAR2014

Safety Bulletin — 2014
REER — 2014

Student Project Competition

SME Development Fund Project

IPBA-CIC Construction
Conference

Safety Awards 2014

Mediation Conference 2014

2014 BEWHE

Occupational Safety & Health
Stretching Exercise and
Athletics Competition

BXZ2HREARERLE

ICE HKA and ASCE HK Joint
Annual Conference

RICS Hong Kong Awards and
RICS Annual Conference 2014
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Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Hong Kong Construction Association,
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects, Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers, The Hong Kong Institute of Housing, The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, International Facility
Management Association (HK Chapter), The Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong

TETIRMBE FERERS TEREMBEE -
g HEFELEZe TEAEMBEE -
EREERHE (FELE)
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The Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health Association
BEREREHEDS

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers — Safety Specialist Committee
ERIRNEE -2 TIREEFHEES

Hong Kong Institution of Certified Auditors

FREXREGMES

Inter-Pacific Bar Association

RAFFEHE

The Lighthouse Club

HEe

Hong Kong Trade Development Council, Department of Justice
EREZRRR - BKA

Association for the Rights of Industrial Accident Victims
IXEriEsg

The Institution of Civil Engineers Hong Kong Association, American
Society of Civil Engineers Hong Kong Section
RELATIRZMBEEENS  EXELATREHE

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
FraRl SRS



02.04.2014

11.04.2014

25.04.2014

07-10.06.2014

08.06.2014

06.2014 -
10.2014

07-12.07.2014

26.07.2014

08.08.2014

12.09.2014

12.09.2014

16.09.2014

BIM in Project Management

Practical Approach to Resolving
Disputes in the Construction
Industry

Annual Safety Conference 2014
and 14th AGM cum
Annual Dinner

The 18th Pacific Association
of Quantity Surveyors
Congress 2014

F18EEABETENEMHE
Ba=

HKIE Hi-Tech Fiesta 2014
BREIRMBGAREFE2014

Prevention of Outdoor Workers’
Heat Illness at Work

[BERETEER ] & FEE
AlELLE

Indoor Air 2014

YCPG Youth Forum 2014
EFEEXmiE2014

Annual Safety Seminar
and Annual Dinner

The Chartered Institute of
Building (Hong Kong)
Conference 2014

The Lighthouse Club
Contractors’ Dinner and
Safety Awards 2014

Directors’ Symposium 2014

Sponsored and Supported Events
BB RIEE

Hong Kong Institute of Project Management, The Hong Kong
Institute of Building Information Modelling
FRREEEEE  AEERESRHES

Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre, The Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators (East Asia Branch), The Civil Division and ADR
Committee of HKIE

EEBBMEDL  FRFFHEE (REHE) -
IARDBRRFZ T AEHERES

FETREMEE -

Institution of Occupational Safety and Health (Hong Kong)
BEu2RFEEe (B8)

Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, PAQS
TRNEMBE - TAETHBEHE

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
HELIEMEE

Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre
BETARZEDL

Department of Mechanical Engineering, The University of Hong Kong

FREANEEM IR

Hong Kong Coalition of Professional Services

FEEXRER

Society of Registered Safety Officers
gz xEneg

The Chartered Institute of Building (Hong Kong)
RESFFEEEE

The Lighthouse Club — Hong Kong Branch
REE

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
EREEEE

REEHE-T-MEEFR

79



Sponsored and Supported Events
B R IEE

26.09.2014

29.09.2014

05-11.10.2014

15-17.10.2014

29.10.2014

10.2014 -
09.2015

03-05.11.2014

13-1411.2014

2711.2014

27-2911.2014

30.11.2014

07.12.2014

25-30.12.2014

SDI Conference 2014

Working Towards Zero Carbon
Buildings

ICE HKA London Delegation 2014

5th International Conference
on Energy

HKIBIM-CIC Conference 2014

Construction Industry Safety
Award Scheme 2014/2015
BEXZ2RET812014/2015

Cross-strait Highway and
Transportation Development
Conference

R it 32 A B R i

20th AsiaConstruct Conference

Mediation Conference
AHEEE
3rd International Conference

on Climate Change

E&M Safety Walk and Carnival
Fair 2014
BEZ2RIEFE2014

Work Injury Walkathon 2014
THRET - H1TEK2014

HKIE Civil Division Winter
Camp 2014

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Chartered Institution of Civil Engineering Surveyors — Hong Kong
Region, Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors — Land Surveying Division,
Hong Kong Institute of Engineers — Information Technology Division,
Hong Kong Polytechnic University — Department of Land Surveying &
Geo-Informatics

REBFIATIRUSMES  BEUSMEE - DlSE  HEL
EENEE — BMEHESE - BBBIARE — A8 IR EMER

Centre for Innovation in Construction and Infrastructure
Development

The Institution of Civil Engineers Hong Kong Association
K+ AT RMEGEEDE

The Energy Institute Hong Kong, City University of Hong Kong,
White Rose University Consortium

EBLRDR  BAATAR  BERASHE

The Hong Kong Institute of Building Information Modelling
BERRERRREY

Labour Department

BTk

Hong Kong Institution of Highways and Transportation
ECYNTE

The Department of Building & Real Estate, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

FRETABEENEHESRR

Joint Mediation Helpline Office
e BRI =R

Hong Kong Climate Change Forum
e RIEECRIE

The Federation of Hong Kong Electrical & Mechanical Industries
Trade Unions, The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors Limited

HEREXTIGHE S BAREILERHSE

Association for the Right of Industrial Accident Victims
IXErEsg

Hong Kong Institution of Engineers — Civil Division
BEEIRMBE — LADH



Events Supported by the CIC

ESZeXIEnED

Sponsored and Supported Events
BB RIEE

2014

2014

2014

2014

09.01.2014

01.03.2014

07.03.2014

20.03.2014

03.04.2014

09.04.2014

25.04.2014

28.04.2014

Utility Safety and Practical
Competition 2014-2015

Let’s Save 10L Water
I ABAK+ DT+

Hong Kong Green Awards 2014
BREBEENE2014

Construction Manager of the
Year Awards 2014

Conference on Intelligent
Systems, Structures and
Facility 2014

Health Forum on Diabetes

8 PR B8 AR 8 R R
BSIHK Symposium 2014

BIM Strategy in Development
Projects — A Developer’s
Perspective

City Carbon Portal Conference I

Hong Kong Energy Challenges
& Solutions

HKIPM 2014 Conference

Building Information Modelling
for Handover and Facilities
Management

International Institute of Utility Specialists, Hong Kong Institute of
Utility Specialists, CCPDC
BREREX2e  HEEREXEE 1R  RERTIREZEXEERDD

Water Supplies Department
KIEE

Green Council

RIRMEER

The Chartered Institute of Building (Hong Kong)
REEFHEEEE

Asian Institute of Intelligent Buildings
CEVAESE e d iy

Dashun Policy Research Centre

RERBRIFITHR
British Standards Institution

BuildingSMART Hong Kong

The Climate Group
R

HKIE Environmental Division
BATIEMBSRITST

Hong Kong Institute of Project Management
HREERERESS

The Hong Kong Institute of Building Information Modelling
TREEEERSS

BEERE T NMFEFR

81



Sponsored and Supported Events
B R IEE

09.05.2014

20.06.2014

2706.2014

27.06.2014

16.07.2014

01-03.09.2014

18.09.2014

10.10.2014

1710.2014

2710.2014

29-31.10.2014

29.10.2014 -
01.11.2014

10.2014 -
26.11.2014

Symposium on Mindset Change
& Technology Embrace in
Safety Engineering

Training Workshop on BIM and
its applications in Environmental
Protection

NAMI Symposium — Green
Building Materials

Practices of Building Demolition
& Temporary Works 2014

Site Safety Forum 2014 for
Works Contracts and
Property Services Contracts

ITRNYXEBETIHZD
WEE2014

International Green Building
Conference 2014

LSCM Logistics Summit 2014
2014 B IEE

NEC Asia Pacific Users’ Group
Conference 2014

HK3030 — Market Drivers
towards Sustainable Built
Environment Policy Forum

83030 — AIHEEERE
BRBUKWE

Construction Conference

Eco Asia Conference

TNRRER

Eco Expo Asia
BERRREE

HKIA Annual Awards
1965-2014 — 50 Years of
Hong Kong Architecture

82 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014

HKIE — Safety Specialist Committee, The Society of Operations
Engineers (Hong Kong Region)

ERIRMBEL2TIREREHEE S  CETIZMEY

HKIE Environmental Division
BB LIRMBERES T

Nano and Advanced Materials Institute Limited

R B S L B B B IR A R

Hong Kong Institute of Steel Construction

BEHEEES

Hong Kong Housing Authority
EEFEELZEE

Building and Construction Authority, Singapore
ENIEER

Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics and Supply Chain Management
Enabling Technologies

BB e S IR e PR AR 3 L

NEC

Hong Kong Green Building Council
BRI EREES

The Lighthouse Club
REe

Messe Frankfurt, HKTDC
Messe Frankfurt « HEZ D

Messe Frankfurt, HKTDC
Messe Frankfurt * BB Z %5

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
EREREMBE



| | | | | p ¥

Sponsored and Supported Events
BN IFES

0711.2014 Hong Kong Concrete Institute Hong Kong Concrete Institute
Annual Seminar 2014 EERRLEG

13.11.2014 2nd BEAM Affiliate Training BEAM Society Limited
BERRAGEHE

1511.2014 Health Forum on Dashun Policy Research Centre
Alzheimer’s Disease REEBERIITRA L
P 3ER b i B8 % 0 R0 5 R

27112014 Mediation Conference Joint Mediation Helpline Office
REER e R EE N ER

mErge_T-mEEs®R 83
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EVENTS
CALENDAR 2014

EEEWEHWM

i IS /E I |
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JANUARY — H

Launching of TV Drama “Dreams Come True”

[BAHEX | BEEX

—\
(@)
==
\mHER

North District Recruitment and
Training Expo 2014 ¢
TtEREREZIIBES

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Second Technical Seminar on Use of Reduced
Voltage Hand Tools in Construction Site
EIFEREERNES T ASE XM

Kick-off Ceremony of the “Build Your Life
Mentorship Programme 2013-2014”
2014-20155F & [ B A £ R A R8I | RiEhie

E&M TV Show

Launching Ceremony and Information Day
(BESRA) BUERE

HEXREAA

pExge-T-negseR 85
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

R

e
\
\

B

Master Class Distinguished Lecture Series — Session 1:
Materials and Techniques of

Heritage Buildings in Southern China
REDBEELBERT] — &5 — -
BRI R AR R A

“a@

'iw,c!\m

Brainstorming Workshop on Construction Safety

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014

GIC Service GENe

REEBIHY

JANUARY — A

iGlieong

USTRY COUNCIL

;10 Service

Grand Of

nd/Opening;t:




Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Construction Industry Training Board
Thank-you cum Welcoming Dinner

BEXIRZESRHEBRUBRE

Building Your Career Path — Other Learning Course
BESER - AtBEBEERT

IPBA - CIC Construction Conference 2014
2014IPBA — BEXZSEEMNE

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL
b A I =
</ B2EEXEE

CIC Service Centre (Nam Cheong)
Grand Launch Ceremony

BEXZERBFL (HE)ARAR

pExEe-T-negeR 87
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014

7ol

:
7

TECHNICAL SEMINAR {3/ 19
Shaf

Safety of Lift

]
tWorks FHIERIETRZSE

Technical Seminar on Safety of Lift Shaft Works

FREMETRZ2RMTNE

Opening Ceremony of CIC Kowloon
Bay Training Centre
(Enhancement Project Phase One)
BREXBRENEEIRPOMAGK
(BEIRE—H)



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

CIC Lunar New Year Gathering
ZENERE

§EERE
Press Conference

www.hktdc.com

BRRRER | WERT)
Seminar Series on
“Building and Construction Day”
14/2 /2014

Educaton & Carers Expo
HARRANN

Education & Career Expo 2014
014B A RBHXEE

REEHE T -MEEER

89
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

18.02. 2014

Recruitment Day for Sub-Contractors
Cooperative Training Scheme

2 EEHEEEITEEEA

Briefing Session on Construction Workers Registration System

BEXTAZRASHENS

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL
S aM: in o
BEEXEE S

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL

< EEEXEE S
CIC 7t Anniversary = ktail Reception

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL

-~ BEXAEH

CIC 7t Anniversary Cocktail Reception

REXERELREES

REEHE-T-MEEFR



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Master Class Distinguished Lecture Series — Session 2:
Materials and Techniques of Heritage Buildings

in Northern China

REDREEHBERS — R = :

B b7 T B Y MR B Al

Briefing Session on
Construction Workers Registration System

BEXTAZMASEHNS

LSCM Roadshow 2014 — Your Ideal Smart City
2014 LSCMYIRRE — [1R] BErEERT

92 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014558 H

Inaugural CIC Graduates Evening Tea Gathering

BEXREEXBSERRERE

Construction Skills Workshop
BERMNER - BERREIES

L
CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNC

gEE:

Electrical and Mechanical Trades Expo -
Manpower Recruitment

HEXEE - ASTKEE

rEgme_TnFEFR 93
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Construction Skills Workshop ‘
RERMOER - BERETES NI

a=
.\

MARCH = A

Briefing Session on
Construction Workers Registration System

BEXTAZMASHNE

Master Class Distinguished Lecture Series — Session 3:
Materials and Techniques of Western Conservation

REDRBEHBERS — RII= : AR EHN YR RS

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HE

Meeting with the Hong Kong
Construction Association

ERBEEHEEM
™ g; 2014BE L EHE B L ERE L ! | Construction Industry Sports Day cum
EomTeT DSt SouclL Construction Industry Sports Day cum Charity Fun Day | ’ 'j Charlty Fun Day 2014

BERED W 2014@%%@@%2%%@% E

Charity Sponsors

|

]

- |

- i o |
\? k¢ : .

BEERE T NFEFR
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Events Calendar 2014

2014 3EBN AR
Mediatc
Mediation Conference 2014 - Hong Kong
MARCH = H

Mediation Conference 2014

A EE2014 20
Mediation Week 2014
FAERE2014

| pexnespil
AREEEE
9013/201

Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme Award Presentation
Ceremony 2013/2014
BEXZ2RBT MR 2013/2014ERFES

96 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Mediation Week in Hong Kong
Semin:

ar on Construction Mediation

ring Day for Construction Pr

Seminar on Construction Mediation

b 5 IS =
i Experience Sharing Day for
Construction Professionals

BEXEEATERIE

Master Class Distinguished Lecture Series — Session 4:

Chinese and Western Landscape Architecture

REDRGEHBERS — RIIM © EXEHK

Meeting with the Russian Delegation
EfEAREEE

Participated in the City Forum
SE (HHwiE)

pExge-T-neges 97



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Technical Seminar on
Draft Standard Form of
Domestic Sub-contract
BRISEENEEEN
HRREREITHEE

04

APRILI H

CIC Training Centres Open Day cum
Principal Luncheon 2014
2014 B IIAMp O
FHEERRTES

98 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Grand Launch Ceremony of BIM Year 2014
20142 R EMERFRER

Meeting with Institution of Occupational
Safety and Health (The United Kingdom)
and Guangzhou Association of Work Safety
EREZEREZE(KE)R
BMNTRZ2EEHE

Meeting with the British Chamber of Commerce’s
Construction Industry Group f :
EEBREEREE MEEE e 7 T

regme—_TnFEsFR 99
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Seminar Series for Employers of
the Construction Industry — Part 3

BEXETBRERD(Z)

APRILM A

= e et
- N INDUSTR! L o £ g .
Eassis Ny | Recruitment Day for Sub-Contractors

e Cooperative Training Scheme

S EEEEEIIF8EEL

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Alumni Sharing Series — Bar Bending

REDEERY — HHEEN

Meeting with Constructing Excellence
BdConstructing Excellence & H

Relocation of General Office of
Management and Safety Training Centre
of the CIC
BEXISEERZ2VRPUOPRETE

regme—_TnFEFg 101
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

O The Information Expo on
Multiple Pathways 2014

%t HH B8 & SHOW 2014

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014

- S

o | apmrAnity

EN L FNSWATTHEB

f O i
]

o |

— for Trade Test

bsidy for Tr?
" 5::C|'ied Training Cours

L,

=

b O ' ‘;
i - ) ‘
Construction Recruitment and Family

Fun Day for Ethnic Minorities

BEXVBRERERZARERES




Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Meeting with
China Construction Industry Association

EHEEEXGEEME

REEHE-T-MEEFR
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Events Calendar 2014

2014 5B HES
Award Presentation Ceremony for |
Innovative Safety Initiative Award .
2014 AIR TR 2 RFRAR
[ ./

-

\

=TT, o

i

Construction Safety Week Conference
BEXZ2AWMTE

Construction Safety Week 2014
BEEL2E2014

Construction Safety Week
Zero Accident Flag Presentation Ceremony

BEXZZRATRIRIERE

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Construction Safety Week Site Visit
BREXZ2ATHSE

it

20BN BRI BIAREE

e ———

20THJCONSIDER

29'542014)

REEHE-T-MEEFR

Award Presentation Ceremony for the 20th Phase
of the Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme

105
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Seminar on Heat Stress Assessment
and Construction Site First Aid
HBEOIER T SRR EEE

Joined The HKIE Hi-Tech Fiesta 2014
ZH[BERIERMESAIEEFE2014]

Awarded the “Distinguished Family-Friendly Employers”
(Organisation Category) in the Year 2013/14
RE2013/14FE [HHREREREE | (BB4A)RE

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

| Alumni Sharing Series — Painting

. RROEZBRS — HRPHR

Opening Ceremony of

Renovated CIC Aberdeen

Trade Testing and Training Centre
BEXBERREFIENER
AR OB R RER

regme—_TnFEsR 107



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Meeting with The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
EERABMESERE

2014 WorldSkills Hong Kong Competition
cum Construction Industry Mega Fun Day

014BREFREAREBREXENEFE

108 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HE

j i ‘I-LUl"fwﬂﬁTE 9
WorldSkills Hong Kong Competition cum Carnival 2014 Opening Ceremony \

EPRHB Organisers

\i TC

CF‘ R X N KB
CLOTHING INDUSTRY T T

regme—_TnFEsFR 109



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Construction Safety Forum and
= Award Presentation Ceremony

BEXZESTEEMRAR

o)
o2 sl

Co-organised the 2014

Real Estate Project Management

BIM Strategy Summit with zhulong.com
EERPEW

2014 EHE EEEK S ERE

110 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Young Lo Pan Award Ceremony 2014
20145 FRPIRERIE

Lo Pan Patron’s Day
Cocktail Reception

BUAMEES

BEERE T NFEFR
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Seminar on Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance — Laws and Updates
BESEAMIE

Liberal Studies Writing Competition 2013-14
Award Presentation Ceremony fl 2
[2013-14BR R BT | REHRE

s ¢ o casio =F A
i = ¢ 4
COPENTION
A 101510 mamxmfete R ) RESHE

LIBERAL STUDIES 2
&

&
COMPETITION

201314z

Cruoial English SKils to
D il

EOOS

Meeting with the Association of Consultant Quantity Surveyors

HEEBEXTHIEEALS

112  CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014558 H

Closing Ceremony of “Build Your
Life Mentorship Programme”

[BEANEMATE AR

s TECHNICAL SEMINAR 3/ H A1 &

Safety Operation of Mobile Cranes  FiE1SUIB MR 2IR(F
24.07.2014

Technical Seminar on Safety Operation of Mobile Cranes

RBXNEER T RERMHNS

JULY £ A

CIC Training Schemes Briefing Session

BEXBEIFIGAENS

REgHe—_T-nNFEFR 113



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

AUGUST \H

CIC Media Luncheon
BEEESERESE

Recruitment Day for Sub-Contractors
Cooperative Training Scheme

2 EEHEEEITEEEA

114  CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Outreach Registration Renewal Service
SNED TR AR A%

Meeting with the Hong Kong Construction
Sub-Contractors Association
HEBEEXSIEEHSEE

REgHe_T-nNFEFR 115



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Attended the Asia-Pacific Economic
Cooperation China 2014
THE TENTH CONFERENCE ON STANDARDS AND CONFORMANCE - HE2014FEPFIE ARESIEABIES

UTILIZING BUILDING INFORMATION MODELING

AUGUST \ H

Asia-Pacific = APEC

Economic Cooperation CHINA 2014

CIC Photo Competition Award Presentation

BEFBBYLERRAE

R OEE = fFoE O BB M B AR
~TUNG WAH GROUP OF HOSPIT
A1 TUNG RUI SOCIAL SERVIC

>

CONSTRUCTION
INDUSTRY COUNCIL

O Eiﬁ%g

Participated in the Volunteer Services for Tung Hah Group of
Hospitals Tai Tung Pui Care & Attention Home
SMRE=GRREEERERZTRE

116  CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

- o O T, i T

Microsoft C;:.":-L ¥ e
oo

R LERET x nEs x Vaigha iy g
®.C\C x Cyberport x HKOGE
7 SER UEEBAE AR

|G OIGITAL GAME OEVELOPMENT COMPETIT
RIZE PRESENTATION CEREMONY

5% Hong Kong Digital Game Development Competition
Award Presentation Ceremony

FHEZBERESAMFEARRERS

Briefing Session on
Construction Workers Registration System

BEXTAZMASEHENS

Meeting with Construction Management Association of the Republic of China
HAERELEEEEHEEE

REgEHe_T-NFEFR 117
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Events Calendar 2014

2014 3EBN AR
Seminar Series for Employers of
the Construction Industry — Part 4
BERETBERTI(T)
SEPTEMBER 71 H

HONG KONG GREEN BUILDING WEEK 2014 LAUNCHING CEREMONY
BiE iR EmIREE2014 Bl EN@E

Briefing Session on
Construction Workers Registration System

BEXTAGMAGHE TS

Hong Kong Green Building Week
2014 Launching Ceremony
EEREEEB20145E

Briefing Session on
Construction Workers Registration System

BEXTAZMASKENS

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Project Clients Summit:

Development of BIM Implementation Strategies
BHEEIEEE

BRBEEEERNETRE

Il

WHWW

Hong Kong Green Building Week 2014:
Mini LegCo and Youth Forum
EEREOREE 2014
BEFREREERIEERW

FHGERmE 2014
HONG KONG GREEN BUILDING WEEK 2014
(8824 LEARKRAR
BIZ-GREEN M EAKFAST GATHERING

= Ay
T ala

AR

Hong Kong Green Building Week 2014:
Biz-Green Monday Breakfast Gathering

EBEEERE2014 Hong Kong Green Building Week 2014:
' o Green Building Photo and Microfilm Contest Exhibition
[B.H.Z%| FHARERRE
% i ERRORER014:

ER - B2 | BYRBEXLREGRERR

rEgme—_T-nNFEFR 119



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

SEPTEMBER J1H

Dinner Reception of the Hong Kong Construction
Industry to Celebrate the 65th Anniversary of the PRC
ERBERBRTEARANBERISEAFHEES

Awarded the Silver Award for
Reputation Management of the 2nd

Hong Kong Public Relations Awards 2014
ERE_ETRALERE2014
FEEEHERIRE

120 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014558 H

Meeting with the Hong Kong == = = —
Institute of Construction Managers

EEBEEMEEEME

Award Presentation Ceremony of CIC Scholarships for
Family Members of Registered Construction Workers 2014

014FBEXRBEAMBEXTASIBRESHRME

EEE%E}I@WLEA&;DIQM

REEHe -_TNFEFR 121
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

Attended the Singapore Government
BIM Symposium 2014
HE2014F IR B R EE SRR EARS

Attended the Press Conference of the Eco Expo Asia —
International Trade Fair on Environmental Protection 2014

and Hong Kong International Building and Hardware Fair 2014
HEFEERRREE2014REBEREELER2014THEETE

Recruitment Day of Sub-Contractors

Cooperative Training Scheme

OCTOBER + A SEBAEEYHEIEE A

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Meeting with the Building Committee of the
Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association

EERTEHCRHERETREESEH

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY RESOURCE CENTRE

EESEE S laadh

Meeting with delegates from the
Construction Industry Safety
Association of GuangDong Province

EEREEEZEHEAREERE

CIC Trainee Alumni Association Family Fun Day 2014
BREXSEEXZEERARKAREZEMB2014

BEEHE - T-MEEER
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

“ive B

MM

HINL]
HIHLENSEREEN
24 et
Sy JULYEER ]

A
uﬁg o =

BIM Showcase
EEGCEHEBEBEET

BIM Academic Paper Presentation

B EE S RE BT IURR

OCTOBER + H

124  CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

=2 ¢
Hong Kong International !
Building and Hardware Fair

EEABRREERTILR

Networking Reception

HKIBIM-CIC Conference 2014
EREEEEEER SR EEEREWIE2014

BIM Day
ERECEEER

Attended the World Sustainable Building
Conference 2014
HFE2014FERFEEERRZRER

REEHE-T-MEEFR
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

@ 5K WA PO 2014

HBEST

NOVEMBER +—H

Participated in Walk For Nature 2014

ZMFERBER2014 M

2014 Mainland and Hong Kong
Construction Industry Forum

2014 F At ERH B EEERIE

“Know More Construction Trades”

Briefing Session on Timber Formwork

[BiRTEMZD] ENE

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Fﬁimﬁi

Industry C

25.11.2014
SAREARAB=aRAE

Attended the Conference for Construction Industry —

Engineering Risk Management and Integrity Building
HEZEEMNE - AREEREAEER

“Know More Construction Trades” Briefing Session on Plumbing

[k THEMZD] EHNE

REEHe - TNFEFR 127
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

[— = : Opening Ceremony of the CIC Service Centre (Sheung Wan)
BEEFEREPUL(LER)RAESX

| cic SERV
g

v e (GHEN WS
i #xAREEET D (ER)

CIC Conference 2014 Welcome Dinner

NOVEMBER +—A 2014 F BB E ST HEEN RS

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

oonstiactioninnovation

CIC Conference 2014
“Construction Innovation, and Safety Enhancement for the Betterment of Our Society”

014 FBREXBEWNE [EEAFNRARZHBHEESD |

REgEHe-_TmNFEFR 129
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE
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Events Calendar 2014
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Graduation Ceremony

TECHNICAL SEMINAR  $Rif A&
Construction Work Safety Near Water (TH @i TRI9RE
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Technical Seminar on Construction Work Safety Near Water
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5EEHFE

E&M Safety Carnival 2014
BEZZEFE2014

Safe Lifting Competition 2014
REZZRIFLLE2014

Dreams Come True 2+1 Preview Ceremony
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Events Calendar 2014
2014 5B HEE

Kick-off Ceremony of the “Build Your Life Mentorship Programme 2014-2015”
2014-2015F E [ BB AN EM A8 | BEE

Seminar Series for Employers of
the Construction Industry — Part 5
BEXETBERTI(R)

Trade Association Sharing —
Hong Kong Bar-bending Contractors Association
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBETHRE

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of
Construction Industry Council

(Established under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance, Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region)

We have audited the financial statements of Construction Industry
Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 136 to 163, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the statement
of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in fund and reserves and cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Council’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of

the state of the Council’s of affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19June 2015
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Financial Statements
BRIk

Statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014

= N2

SIS TE R 2520145812831 A1LEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB¥E)

Note Fff&F 2014 2013
Income ['ON
Levy income A 3 $783,325,985 664,037,182
Course fee and related income I E M AB R 22,737,078 25,933,891
Registration fee income SEE WA 4 9,940,360 9,450,939
Trade testing income TEAIFHBA 8,449,130 5,608,310
Investment and interest income 158 R H B A 5 14,818,003 9,341,250
Other income HUA 6 96,432,159 69,999,565
$935,702,715 784,371,137
Less: e
Expenditure X
Staff costs EEEHR 7 $294,275,995 263,954,080
Training expenses s E A 184,578,093 132,928,241
Workshop sundries TIGHIET 25,759,983 23,843,409
General and administrative expenses —MAITEE R 8 99,846,901 64,989,369
Repair and maintenance expenses HIEREER 12,482,398 8,638,694
Advertising and publicity expenses EEEEEH 31,833,642 26,165,909
Depreciation e 10 39,555,450 28,649,729
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - sk
plant and equipment FiE 2 BB 382,125 132,747
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts RIRZEME D] 14(a) (6,286) (357)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale Al SR AR
investments IEEE 2,391,441 -
$691,099,742 549,301,821
Surplus for the year REFZ R $244,602,973 235,069,316

The notes on pages 142 to 163 form part of these financial statements.

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014

F142E163B MM BRI REK 2 —30D °



Financial Statements

B fER%
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014
S EREMEENER 8520145128318 15
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAASHEET)
Note Fft&E 2014 2013
Surplus for the year REEFREER $244,602,973  $235,069,316
Other comprehensive income for theyear ~ A&EHM2E®=E
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: ] 748 &8~ HH
Available-for-sale investments: AR ERE 2()
- Net (decrease)/increase in —RNEEEZ
fair value % O,/ #BE (3,623,290) 897,588
- Impairment loss transferred to - BEEBENRER
profit or loss HREEE 2,391,441 -
(1,231,849) 897,588
Total comprehensive income for the year REEHEZEKRE $243,371,124  $235,966,904

There is no tax effect relating to the above component of the other

comprehensive income.

The notes on pages 142 to 163 form part of these financial statements.

FRA L EmEEREARBO NMFERBE R
@,

F142E 163 B MM cEB A IS mREK 2 —3b1D °

BEERE T NMFEFR

137



138

Financial Statements

BrES R

Statement of financial position at 31 December 2014

AR TR 702014128318

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABHEET)

Note Fff7E 2014 2013
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HER MR 10 $329,740,505  $298,365,457
Held-to-maturity investments BHERHAE 2 RE 11 59,510,391 30,150,855
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZRE 12 39,290,797 42,914,087
. $428,541,693  $371,430,399
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ETF 13 $964,056 $1,413,034
Levy receivables FEWEIGR 14 54,009,003 42,785,263
Deposits, prepayments and FHEZe  BNER
other receivables N FE U R IE 15 68,637,153 50,511,356
Cash and deposits at banks RTINS MIFER 16 978,292,501 777,053,172
Cash on hand FERE 124,400 160,400
$1,102,027,113 $871,923,225
Current liabilites wEEE
Accounts payable and accruals JERTIRIE N FEATE A 17 $124,552,602 $79,271,914
Deferred income on registration fee FH B R E UL A 18 8,165,257 8,772,535
e $132,717,859  $88,044,449
Netcurrentassets nBREFR $969,309,254  $783,878,776
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE $1,397,850,947 $1,155,309,175
Non-current liability krEmEE
Deferred income on registrationfee AMERERA 18 $5,899,986 $6,729,338
Net assets BERE $1,391,950,961 $71,148,579,837
Represented by: R
Accumulated fund 2EES $1,002,117,911  $757,514,938
General reserve TiEHE 389,353,310 389,353,310
Investment revaluation reserve BRESHHEE 479,740 1,711,589
Total fund and reserves ESRRABER $1,391,950,961 1,148,579,837

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

members of Construction Industry Council on 19 June 2015 and were

signed on their behalf by:

Ir LEE Shing-see, GBS, 0BE, JP
Chairman

Ir CHAN Siu-hung

Member, Committee on Administration and Finance

The notes on pages 142 to 163 form part of these financial statements.
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Financial Statements

B iEHRR
Statement of changes in fund and reserves for the year ended 31 December 2014
EERFEBER 852014612831 ALLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAASHEET)
Investment
Accumulated General revaluation
Note fund reserve reserve Total
izt 2RES LEFE REEMEEE |
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(3 (a)) (& (b))
Balance at 1 January 2013 R2013E1 A1 A 266 $522,445,622  $386,426,758 $814,001  $909,686,381
Changesinfundand 0138EZEEE
reserves for 2013: RELE
Surplus for the year AEERH $235,069,316 $- $-  $235,069,316
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 EiE - - 897,588 897,588
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ AFEE#EEEKE $235,069,316 $- $897,588  $235,966,904
Statutory transfer of netassetsfrom mEgETAERERR
Construction Workers Registration Authority ~ BEFEZTER 9 $- $2,926,552 $- $2,926,552
Balance at 31 December 2013 R2013F12A318 K
and 1January 2014 201451 B1A 2 &8 $757,514,938  $389,353,310 $1,711,589  $1,148,579,837
Changesinfundand 04EEZESE
reserves for 2014; REEE .
Surplus for the year AEERH $244,602,973 $- $-  $244,602,973
Other comprehensive income Ei 2 - - (1,231,849) (1,231,849)
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ AFEAZE NS $244,602,973 $- $(1,231,849)  $243,371,124
Balance at 31 December 2014 2014512318 2 &8k $1,002,117,911  $389,353,310 $479,740  $1,391,950,961
Notes: o

(@) The general reserve has been set up to record the statutory transfer of net
assets from Construction Industry Training Authority on 1 January 2008 and
Construction Workers Registration Authority on 1 January 2013 (note 9).
The general reserve was created for employing the reserve in the operations
of the Council or by investing the reserve in such manner as the members
think fit. The members may apply the general reserve for any other special
purpose.

(b) Theinvestment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale investments held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in
note 2(f).

The notes on pages 142 to 163 form part of these financial statements.
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Financial Statements

BrES R

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2014

BWEREBR BE2014F 128318 1LEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABEET)

Note Fft&E 2014 2013
Operating activities EIEEE
Surplus for the year REZ R $244,602,973  $235,069,316
Adjustments for: PHE
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts — RIRXEMERE D (6,286) (357)
Depreciation e 39,555,450 28,649,729
Investment and interest income BE R BWA (14,818,003) (9,341,250)
Impairment loss on A ERER
available-for-sale investments BB EE 2,391,441 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEMZE - HeZ Rk
plant and equipment B2 EE 382,125 132,747
Operating cash inflow before changes Rit&EEELBFH >
in working capital EERESRE $272,107,700  $254,510,185
Decrease/(increase) in inventories EfERd /(& hm) 448,978 (487,716)
Increase in levy receivables JE WA FRAE 0 (11,217,454) (2,057,638)
Increase in deposits, prepayments %% BNEAK
and other receivables H A e Y bR TE IS A0 (16,683,384) (21,342,535)
Increase in accounts payables FEIIRIA &
and accruals JEETE BN 45,280,688 27,725,808
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income  3EIEW A CRi4>), /10 (1,436,630) 152,364
Net cash generated from operating REEETHH 2
activities REFAE $288,499,8908  $258,500,468
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Financial Statements

B iEHRR
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 20714 (continued)
REREBR 8520145128318 1LFE (8)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAASHEET)
Note fft&E 2014 2013
Investing activities REED
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits () Rk RBG
with original maturity over =@AAZEz
three months RITIFR $(64,924,008) $164,905,140
Payment for purchase of held-to-maturity ~ BEEFZEZIERIEE
investments EOENE (29,546,265) =
Interest received L EREY FI 2, 11,729,416 7,313,129
Dividend received from available-for-sale WERA] it H B 1R &
investments Z BB 1,832,903 1,766,986
Payment for purchase of property, PN/ E
plant and equipment PEONNEN (71,312,623) (66,216,662)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE - #eZ Rk
plant and equipment RAEFTIS R - 2,200
Cash from statutory transfer of BIESET AR
net assets from Construction EEREEFE
Workers Registration Authority EEEBERE 9 - 103,570
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR, BWBEEE
investing activities EEZES A $(152,220,577) $107,874,363
Net increase in cash and ReRERRLEHE
cash equivalents IR $136,279,321  $366,374,831
Cash and cash equivalents 1A1EZEER
at 1 January ZEHRELER 472,078,712 105,708,881
Cash and cash equivalents 12831828 &R
at 31 December ZEBRLEA $608,358,033  $472,078,712
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRERRLEHE
and cash equivalents EFEZ2 DM
Cash and deposits at banks RITIRE RIFK 16 $978,292,501 $777,053,172
Cash on hand FER& 124,400 160,400
$978,416,901 $777,213,572
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity — J& : FRiBE31E A 25
over three months ZIRITER 16 (370,058,868)  (305,134,860)

$608,358,033

$472,078,712

The notes on pages 142 to 163 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
B AR R M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AR

1 General

The Construction Industry Council (the “Council”) was established as a
statutory body on 1 February 2007 in Hong Kong under the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance (“the Ordinance”). The Council is a non-
profit making organisation and acts as an industry co-ordinating body.
Its principal functions are to forge consensus on long-term strategic
issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations to the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government (the “Government”), as well
as provide a communication channel for the Government to solicit
advice on all construction-related matters. In order to propagate
improvements across the entire industry, the Council is empowered to

formulate codes of conduct, administer registration and rating schemes,

steer forward research and manpower development, provide and co-
ordinate training courses, facilitate adoption of construction standards,
promote good practices and compile performance indicators and make
recommendations with respect to the rate of the levy.

Construction Workers Registration Authority (the "Authority”) was
established as a statutory body on 18 September 2004 in Hong

Kong under the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance. The
Authority was a non-profit making organisation in Hong Kong. Its
principal functions were to be responsible for the administration of the
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance and the supervision of the
registration of construction workers; set the qualification requirements
for registration or renewal of registration; make recommendations with
respect to the rate of levy; and perform such other functions as were
imposed on it under the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance
or any other enactment. On 1 January 2013, the Authority was
amalgamated with the Council and the Authority was dissolved since
then. All rights, assets, liabilities and obligations of the Authority were
vested in the Council and the principal functions of the Authority are
carried out by the Council with effective from 1 January 20183.

The address of the registered office of the Council is located at 15/F,
Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Notes to the financial statements

PARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

2 Significant accounting policies 2 FESTHE

(a) Statement of compliance (a) MER 2Bt

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),

which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA’) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Council is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Council. Note
2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Council for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale investments are stated
at their fair values as explained in the accounting policy set out in
note 2(f).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is also the functional currency of the Council.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

HKFRSs requires the Council to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs and one
new Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Council. These developments have had no material
impact on the Council's financial statements.

The Council has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Consolidation

No consolidated financial statements are prepared as the Council’'s
interest in the results and net assets of its subsidiary is immaterial.

(e) Subsidiary

Subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Council. The Council controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Council has power, only substantive rights (held by the Council
and other parties) are considered.

The Council provides funding support to its subsidiary, Zero Carbon
Building Limited, and the amount is charged to profit or loss when
incurred.

(f) Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction prices unless it is determined that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market
foranidentical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Costincludes
attributable transaction costs. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Dated debt securities that the Council has the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised cost
less impairment losses (see note 2()(i)).
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Other investments in securities, being those held not for trading
purpose, are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. Dividend income from equity securities and
interest income from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(p)(vi) and 2(p)(vii), respectively. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of debt securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 2(h)
(i), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date

the Council commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Building and premises 25 years
— Motor vehicles 5years
— Computer equipment 3-5years
- Renovation and building facilities 5years
— Furniture and fixtures 10years
— Facilities, tools, machinery and workshop equipment 5years
— Otherequipment 10years
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item

of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

(h) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period

to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Council about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- itbecoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

For receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value

of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where

the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

Ifin a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal

of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that

has been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between

the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of levy
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Council is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against levy receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in

the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the property,
plant and equipment may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses
Animpairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying

amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
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(i)

)

— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

Areversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the first-in first-out basis and comprises all
costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of operation less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i)).
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

(k) Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

() Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.

(m) Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees.

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
areliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits

will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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(o) Operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Council determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Council under leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Council are classified as operating leases.

Where the Council has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

(p) Recognition of income

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Council and the income and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably,income is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Levyincome is accounted for on an accrual basis and is
recognised when the assessment of the value of construction
operations by the Council are complete.

(i) Course fee and related income are recognised over the period of
training.

(iii) Trade testing income is recognised upon completion of the
testing.

(iv) Registration fee income is recognised on a time proportion basis.
Unearned registration fee income is treated as deferred income
on registration fee.
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(APBHE3T)

(v) Registration service fee income is recognised when the services

are rendered.

(vi) Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Council’s right to receive payment is established.

(vii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

(viii) Reimbursement of trainees allowances is recognised upon the
payment of trainees’ allowances by the Council.

(q) Related parties

(@) Aperson,ora close member of that person’s family, is related to

the Council if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Council;
(i) has significant influence over the Council; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Council.

(b) Anentity is related to the Council if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) Theentity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).

(i) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or isa member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.

3 Levyincome
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BEZHREXSRNERATHZALRE
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Private sector FE TR
Public sector NETT2

Others (note)
Penalty on overdue levy

Hib T2 (&)
BN R Z 8

ESER

SN

3 #HRWA
2014 2013
$388,329,505 $285,420,736
270,488,820 267,627,979
124,147,072 110,659,084
360,588 329,383

$783,325,985 $664,037,182

Note: Othersinclude levy income on construction operations relating to the
port and airport development, Mass Transit Railway, Express Rail Link,
South Island Line, Penny’s Bay Railway, Kwun Tong Line Extension, West

Island Line and Shatin Central Line.
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In accordance with the provisions of section 32 of the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance, a levy is imposed at the rate of 0.5% on
the value of all construction operations undertaken or carried out in
Hong Kong, for which the tender has been submitted on or after 20
August 2012, and with a total value exceeding $1,000,000. Tender for
construction operations submitted before 20 August 2012 and before
10January 2000 were subject to old levy rates of 0.4% and 0.25%,
respectively.

Additionally, in accordance with the provisions of section 23 of the
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance, a levy is imposed at the
rate of 0.03% on the value of all construction operations undertaken or
carried out in Hong Kong, for which the tender has been submitted or a
construction contract has been entered or the construction operations
have begun on or after 24 February 2005 and with a total value
exceeding $1,000,000.

4 Registration fee income

Registration fee income represents registration fees received and
receivable from construction workers applying for registration which
normally has a validity period of 36 months in accordance with the
Construction Workers Registration (Fees) Regulation (CAP 583(B)).
Registration fee income relating to future periods are treated as
deferred income on registration fee (note 18).
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5 Investment and interestincome 5 RERFEWA
2014 2013
Interest on held-to-maturity debt securities £ = 2| #i B Z &15:5 5 F 5 $1,396,711 $1,414,164
Interest on bank deposits IRITIERZH B 11,588,374 6,160,088
Other interest income E AR B UA 15 12
Dividend from available-for-sale investments A {4t £ 5& 7 f% 2 1,832,903 1,766,986
$14,818,003 $9,341,250
6 Otherincome 6 HaA
2014 2013
Reimbursement of trainees’ allowance B 5 2R $91,387,080 $63,128,565
Other miscellaneous income E b FETEUA 5,045,079 6,871,000
$96,432,159 $69,999,565

Reimbursement of trainees’ allowance represents the receivable from
the Government in respect of the allowances paid by the Council to the
trainees for several approved training schemes.
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Notes to the financial statements
BTSRRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

7 Staffcosts 7 EEEH
2014 2013
Contributions to the defined R ERFCGRIKETE
contribution retirement plan FHEEFR $19,311,517 $18,051,120
Salaries, wages and other benefits N - TE REMER 274,964,478 245,902,960
$294,275,995 $263,954,080

8 General and administrative expenses

8 —MRITHEH

General and administrative expenses included: —RITBRERBRE
2014 2013
Operating lease charges: EEHERE
minimum lease payment =IEEE $5,199,294 $3,486,872
Auditors’ remuneration ZHEREN S 322,500 298,200
Cost of inventories (note 13) EEER A (F5E13) 1,540,328 1,647,904

9 Statutory transfer of net assets from the Authority

As set out in note 1, by virtue of section 72(1) of the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance, all rights, assets, liabilities and obligations of the
Authority were vested in the Council and the principal functions of the
Authority are carried out by the Council with effective from 1 January
2018.

Net assets transferred to the Council on 1 January 2013 were as follows:

9 %gﬁlkﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁfifﬁ
512

NP EET Pl - AR IR GRIEE T ARG &
72()1& - #2013 1A 1B EIEBHNEN -
BE BEMEIERRZE  MEERMNEE
BRRE TN R AT ©

2013F 1 A1HEREZZSNEEFENT ¢

Inventories EfF $925,318
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% ~ Ta1~ & F K £ b e I 1R 18 236,014
Amount due from the Council FEFZEIRIE 18,643,379
Accounts payables and accruals FERIRIERIEFTE A (1,632,220)
Deferred income on registration fee T EIREWA (15,349,509)
Subtotal NEE $2,822,982
cashonhand FEEE $103,570
Netcashinflow ... RAREF® $103,570
Total 5 $2,926,552
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Notes to the financial statements

BTSRRI =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A7 H83T)
10 Property, plant and equipment 1093 ~ R =E
Facilities,
tools,
machinery
Building Renovation and
and Motor ~ Computer and building Furniture  workshop Other
premises vehicles  equipment facilities andfixtures  equipment  equipment Total
BENRET a1 4B EER BER R » Attt o
EFRIE BELE I8 #HK
ISRk
(Note)
Cost: B
At 1 January R2013E
2013 1H18 $203,142,161 $458,106  $14,912,990 $50,403,385  $1,616575 $26,846,839  $5,684,991 $303,065,047
Additions R 19,686,664 693,700 6,994,041 32,102,146 322,456 5,575,162 842,493 66,216,662
Disposals e = = = (3,110) (12,100) (26996)  (258421)  (300,627)
At31December  H20135
ms 12A318  $22878825  $1151806 S21907031 982602421 $1906931 $3305005  $6260063 $366981082
At 1 January 120145
2014 1H18 $222,828,825  $1,151,806 $21,907,031 $82,502,421  $1,926931 $32,395,005  $6,269,063 $368,981,082
Additions #A 13,941,788 = 6,143,828 36,883,509 3,518,202 8,430,581 2,394,715 71,312,623
Disposals HE - = (346,997)  (6,178,143) (306,498) (140,679) (360,863)  (7,333,180)
At31December 20145
2014 12R318 $236,770613  $1,151,806  $27,703,862 $113,207,787  $5,138,635 $40,684,907  $8,302,915 $432,960,525
Accumulated BHFE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 120138
2013 1R1R $338,571 $313125  $7,299,372  $19,956,303 $395911  $12,410472  $1,417,822  $42,131,576
Charge for theyear  RNFEHef 9,021,448 170,985 3,105,296 10,116,983 173611  5/457,038 604368 28,649,729
Written back HERL
ondisposals el 3 - - - (3,058) (6,115) (24,244) (132,263) (165,680)
At31December  R2013%F
Lo 2A3R 89360019 $484110 $10404668 $30,070.228  $563.407 §17,843266  $1,889.927 §70,615625
At 1 January R20146
2014 1R1R $9,360,019 $484,110  $10,404,668  $30,070,228 $563,407  $17,843,266  $1,889,927 $70,615,625
Charge fortheyear AEE R 9,316,057 177,400 3,820,029 18,385,013 416,565 6,694,297 746,089 39,555,450
Written back HERZ
ondisposals 5 - - (346,997)  (6,064,744) (187,325) (125,559) (226,430)  (6,951,055)
At31December  R2014%F
DB AR $18676076 8661510 S18877700 842300497 $792647 S24412004  §2409586 $103,220020
Netbookvalue:  IREEE
At31December 20145
2014 12A318 $218,094,537 $490,296  $13,826,162  $70,817,200  $4,345,988  $16,272,908  $5,893,329 $329,740,505
At31December 120135
2013 12A31H $213,468,806 $667,606 $11,502,363 $52,432,193  $1,363,524 $14551,739  $4,379,136 $298,365,457
Note: Asat 31 December 2014, included in building and premises was an Mk : BE2014F128310 BEYREFRIF

amount of $236,770,608 (2013:$222,828,820) which represented the

cost of Zero Carbon Building (ZCB).

TR R Hb B AR - & 88 /2$236,770,608 (2013
£ 1 $222,828,820) °

REEHE-T-MEEFR
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

11 Held-to-maturity investments

MNEBFZEBPAZ2RE

2014 2013
Unlisted debt instruments in Hong Kong &S ETRIEKEE $30,084,439 $30,150,855
Listed debt instruments on EEBHAER S LM
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong BBRE 29,425,952 =
$59,510,391 $30,150,855
The held-to-maturity investments are neither past due nor impaired. FEEEIE 2 & I s Bk B RIE ©
12 Available-for-sale investments 12 HEHEZRE
2014 2013
Equity securities listed on ERBHER ST LT
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, 2R S
at market value (A{ER) $39,290,797 $42,914,087
Fair value of individually impaired ERIVE R E AR & 1
equity securities FBHEZNFEE $31,046,774 $35,305,217

As at 31 December 2014, the Council's available-for-sale equity
securities were individually determined to be impaired on the basis of
amaterial decline in their fair value below cost which indicated that
the cost of the Council’s investment in them might not be recovered.
Impairment losses on these investments were recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(h)(i).

13 Inventories

Inventories in the statement of financial position represent finished
goods.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expenditure

HZ=20145%12A318 -

R R B 1

EROBEURERANTEEEREEZEEN
AR - RS A IR E KA S ARG E 2 &
#T - EHEE - BRRENRERE  ERE
FfEE2(n) () PTFIERSR - IR ETTRERR

13EF

FIIEARRIRR S| B BT R B ©

EFFRER A B E ABRSRA BN DT

and included in the statement of profit or loss is as follows: N
2014 2013
Carrying amount of inventories sold & EFRIREE $1,540,328 $1,647,904
14 Levy receivables 14 PR
2014 2013
Levy receivables UK $56,746,692 $45,672,125
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIRAER (2,737,689) (2,886,862)
$54,009,003 $42,785,263
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All levy receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

The average credit period on levy receivables granted to the contractors
is 28 days after the date of the notice of assessment. Further details on
the Council’s credit policy are set out in note 20(a).

No penalty is imposed on the contractor for the specified period of 28
days. Thereafter, penalty is imposed at 5% of the unpaid amount. If
the amount of the levy or surcharge, including any penalty imposed
remains unpaid within three months after the expiry of the specified
period, a further penalty of 5% of the unpaid amount will be imposed
on the outstanding balance. The Council would provide fully for all long
outstanding receivables, having considered, inter alia, the likelihood of
recoverability based on historical experience.

Included in the Council’s levy receivables balance are debtors with a
carrying amount of $394,987 (2013:$1,026,697) which were past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Council had not provided
for any doubtful debts as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

(a) Impairment of levy receivables

Impairment losses on levy receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Council is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against levy receivables directly (see note 2(h)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is
as follows:

Notes to the financial statements

PARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

P A RIS RN —F AR E -

FEE AL RAEN B 28K AE
B - BElRZSERABRAE—FFE  BIR
MsE20(a) °

FEIEAAR) 28 R Y TR EIR - (BBEAEEA
BT 18 AR BN FREE 5% B 3Kk o AnEIRR SR AN
£ BRATEWRSE - EAEAR28 KB
JEmER =8 AR RAHR - AEEAIZABEN
BN S NEIEK - BE KRB FRERRE% - BT
REBEBEIERBFEWER K - RRAER
FEUIRIA VR th 2 81334

g IR ERHRA - ERIREESI94,987
(20134 : $1,026,697) MEK R WK B HEE
BBEEEHR  ZoalEKIREZERERT
mEBEALE - BREABRENAKE - ARG
BRERIRVEL B -

(a) BRER ZRE
EMEER 2 RERBESAEFIRFRE - &R
FESEFWDSEREMT RN AgE
BB B R WHGGEHRERR (R E20)
@) -

FREARREEOZBT

2014 2013
At 1 January "1 A18 $2,886,862 $2,966,170
Reversal of impairment BERE (6,286) (357)
Uncollectible amounts written off  iE#Ekaeli B £ %8 (142,887) (78,951)
At 31 December M12H31H $2,737,689 $2,886,862

At 31 December 2014, the Council’s levy receivables of $2,737,689
(2013:$2,886,862) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to contractors that were
either under liquidation or in financial difficulties and the Council
assessed that the full amount of the receivables to be irrecoverable.

In determining the recoverability of levy receivables, the Council
collectively considered any change in the credit quality of the levy
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
contractor base being large and unrelated.

M201412H31H © & & & & W B &K
$2,737,689 (20134 : $2,886,862) £ & 7l
EETE(E LR E o [ERR (A WG IES & E#
TR ERERENERER  EF5S
ST S AT Y o] fE IR TR A 4R 58 o

ZEEGERWHAFEDTRER  SREE
BHRETEEEHRE A B EHEERE
RNEREREEEY - AN ARENHKE
HERABETHEE  REKNERARE
fR e

REEHE-T-MEEFR
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(APBHE3T)

(b) Levy receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of levy receivables that are neither individually

(b) AR AE B 2 FE LR

ﬁiﬁﬁi‘k B R ARRE N YR IRE

nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: DATIR -
2014 2013
Current g8 $53014016 $41,758,566
Less than one month past due wHED R E A $859,199 $981,357
One to three months past due BE1ZE3EA 20,550 42,428
Over three months past due A EAFE A3 E A 115,238 2,912
J N $994,087 $1,026,697
$54,009,003 $42,785,263
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide REBEASRENEINIRIE - F R 2RI

range of contractors for whom there was no recent history of default.

15 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

EII R BRCERHY AR ©
15 BIEES - AN ERARAEEYRIRE

2014 2013

Deposits and prepayments FHEEZEe RFENER $12,057,514 $10,291,628
Other receivables H b EUIR IR

— Interest receivables — RIF B 3,235,739 1,793,326

— Receivable from the Government — 2R B BT R UL IR IE 49,862,779 30,830,721

- Others — Hh 3,481,121 7,595,681

$68,637,153 $50,511,356

The amount of the Council’s deposits expected to be recovered after
more than one year is $2,978,555 (2013:$2,920,655). All of the other
deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenditure within one year. All other
receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

16 Cash and deposits at banks

Cash and deposits at banks comprise cash and demand deposits held
by the Council.

BEHERBRE - FRERKENZSERESEAR
$2,978,555 (20134F : $2,920,655) » AT A E A
e FENER - AREMEIKIRIE - FBEFER
—FARESERR B HIER o S - EME
W R IE Y9N0 4 360 HA SR (B ©

16 RITREREFX

ZENRTRERFRERERE SIEMFR -

2014 2013
Deposits with banks RITEN
- with original maturity over three months — R E %R 31E A $370,058,868 $305,134,860
- with original maturity less than three months  — RiZ&H R 31E A 595,000,000 455,000,000
Cash at bank BIRE 13,233,633 16,918,312

$978,292,501 $777,053,172
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17 Accounts payable and accruals

All of the accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

18 Deferred income on registration fee

Deferred income on registration fee represents the unearned portion
which was not recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

19 Taxation

Pursuant to section 28 of the Construction Industry Council Ordinance,
no provision for taxation has been made in the financial statements
as the Council is exempted from taxation under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

20 Financial risk management and fair values of financial
instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the normal
course of the Council’s operation. The Council is also exposed to equity
price risk arising from its investments in equity securities. The Council’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies

and practices used by the Council to manage these risks are described
below.

(a) Creditrisk

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable to levy receivables
and other receivables.

The Council reviewed the recoverable amount of the outstanding
balances at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Council's exposure
to credit risk arising from levy receivables are set out in note 14.

(b) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Council, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Council's short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity requirements. The Council managed
liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows.

Notes to the financial statements
B SRR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABHEST)

17 BEIRARESER

P FERTIR X et B BTEES I —FNAEE
/,\EHET{EE

18 M EIELE WA

S B R E U A BN SR A B 24 B 2R HESR M R BRER
WA e

19 Fi18

RE(REXZSHKRI) F28F ARNZESR
(TS IRG]) BER RN R - BUIRETRRED
TR -

209 EBEEREMTAQTEE

EEBETEERREY  gHBAXEE  RHE
& MFAIRRBRAIER - g7 \457?&%%%4‘&%%
HFHE S| BERERRAR - e AZERER
RESANTBERREREHRER AT - il
I

(a) EER
BENEERKREZRE EWEG R EARE
Hﬁlmﬁm ©

ZERNE—REPERE  HeRIEKIE
KB AT B SRIE - RECR N AT YR Bl IR VE
HEREBE - RS EBEGRTE R
EERKRE—FTEEFTHEEER BN
BizE14 o

(b) REVE E AR

MBECRMERENGREETFENEE
u%AEi“L ﬁi?“%mémééfbﬁaﬁ%%
B UEEEZEeNEH  PHERARE

HEHESE K  ZEERFEEREHRE
ERIBeRE  EERBESHNER -
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(APBHE3T)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through

the impact of rate changes on interests bearing financial assets.
Interests bearing financial assets are mainly cash and deposits

at banks which are all short term in nature. Therefore, any future
variations in interest rates will not have a significant impact on the
results of the Council.

(d) Equity price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as available-for-sale equity investments (see
note 12). All of these investments are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong.

Listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have
been chosen based on their longer term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease)
of 1% (2013:1%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
investments), with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Council’s reserve by $392,908 (2013:
$429,147).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the
Council’s investment revaluation reserve that would arise assuming
that the changes in the stock market index had occurred at the

end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Council which expose the
Council to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. Itis
also assumed that the fair values of the Council’s equity investments
would change in accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index, that none of the Council’s available-
for-sale investments would be considered impaired as a result of
the decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2013.
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RemEFERAR WESHEEFZER
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(d) S ERER

FZEERXDBR/AHRBERSEREMER
MEREREE (RHE12) - AEZHKRE
VERBEBMER B LM -

BEAHHEREHERANLHTRE - &
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720145128318 » (HF E BRI
(M EHRE) B1% R Cid) (2013
F:1%) AREMTEEHERETET -
TLESHMELM R A$392,908 (2013
F 0 $429,141) °
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(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, categorises fair value
measurements into a three-level hierarchy. The level into which fair
value is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair values measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fall to meet Level 1,and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair values measured using significant
unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the only financial instruments of the
Council carried at fair value were available-for-sale equity securities
of $39,290,797 (2013: $42,914,087) listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong (see note 12). These instruments are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis and their fair value measurements fall
into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described above.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were

no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Council’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Councils financial instruments carried

at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Notes to the financial statements

PARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(e) APEE 2

() ARFEEFEZETHTA

N EERS

(BEMBHREERNF135 - ATV EEFE)
RAFEEFE  »R=EL  EERF
BEMNDRE @2ZHENAIRERER
AR A ERMmEEL T

- BIRA RUBIRBIBRAELTFE
B BRI EERREETES
KRBTSR ERRE LM ERTE

- 2B AP 2REIE R EATFEE
BUATE & 1A M9 A] B EUERETE - BT
LAERTA] BB R E - a] BEERD
REEFETH 5 Al 1S R BUE
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20134 R2014EHI12A318 - & LAATF
EEYIIRFNE—SRTE - AE{E$39,290,797
(20134 £%$42,914,087) RE BB AR 5 AT
BRAR EMAAH L EEREES (RHTE
12) - BESBMT ENEEEFNRATEE
PR - EAFEEAEEN B AFEBERR
IS4 »

BZE2013F K2014FM12H31BIEFER -
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Notes to the financial statements

BARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

21 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2014 not

21 7K

(a) ®20145F12 A 318 & RE1T R R M ],

provided for in the financial statements were as follows: REPARBEB2ERKEMT :
2014 2013
Contracted for EEL $20,363,142 $39,701,041

Capital commitments relate to the acquisition or development of

property, plant and equipment.

(b) At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

EAREREEBARERYE  HBERR
e

(b) FA20145FE12A31H ' TAIECER & EF
ERABRINREAEESHROT :

2014 2013

Within one year R1ER $5,358,672 $5,358,672
After one year but within five years  14141B5F A 5,358,672 10,717,344
$10,717,344 $16,076,016

The Council is the lessee in respect of a property held under

operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.

The lease does not include contingent rentals.

22 Material related party transactions

As the members of the Council were being drawn from private or

public construction industry sector organisations, it is inevitable that

transactions will take place with organisations in which a member

may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which

members of the Council may have an interest, subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year, were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the Council's procurement

procedures.

During the year, the Council entered into the following transactions with

related parties.

ZET-HELEHEEMENEEA - HEH
EMFRBP=F  FEGFEENBHKT
EEEE - RRAETBRRSETNR

2BEALERZ

HRZEEXBEAREREXRALEHIREHRE
B ZEHRCENEENGREENBELETR
5 o AF RFESKE BN EBENKE - 9RIE
FRRGARZENRERFETHEEFER
ERIFATARRDALERORS

ZEEFRNEBEALET NIRS -

2014 2013
Funding support to Hong Kong HEBHGOESRZT
Green Building Council Limited BRATIMNEE S $16,636,632 $15,523,854
Funding support to HERRH G R A A
Zero Carbon Building Limited B B S FF 17,052,577 11,753,197
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Balances with related parties at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Notes to the financial statements

PARS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABHE)

ZEERENERTEFEA LR EHR

2014 2013
Net amount due from Hong Kong BN EBZCEERS
Green Building Council Limited BRATIMIRIEFEE $21,868 $2,476,146
Amount due from BN E iR KA R A A
Zero Carbon Building Limited RIIRIE 164,137 982,128

23 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet

effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have not been

adopted in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Council.

230 EAEHRE Z=20145F128318 Lk
FERREMPIEET » FIEERARR
BNy g

EEAHEHRRERERD  BESMASESE
maETEFT RINGER - BEAERTREREE
2014F12A3MB L FEAR - IMABTEARTIE
MR o ZL(EET R AER Sk B2 AR I
U

Effective for AR L B B

accounting periods S LATE FLA

beginning on or after BHFE

Annual Improvements to HKFRs 1July 2014 (EBHBMBHREER) FE 2014718
2010 - 2012 Cycle 2 (2010-2012457)

Annual Improvements to HKFRs 1July 2014 (EBHBIRELER]) FE 201457 H18
2011 - 2013 Cycle 2 (2011-201348H9)

Annual Improvements to HKFRs 1January 2016  (EBHIEIRELER]) FE 201641818
2012 - 2014 Cycle Mt (2012-20144855)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from 1January 2017  (EBEMBHRELEL) F1658  2017F1H18
contracts with customers — REBFP & KM

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1January 2018 (EBMBRELER]) F95R 20181 A1H

—TRITA

The Councilis in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Council's

financial statements.

Z SR ILHE L FERIR B R ERTEER
AT E - EERAAL - SRR AH
THE NI H R NI BRRBREATE -
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B4

The actual remuneration of staff members exceeding $1,000,000 in 20134 20145 B BR F % 8 18$1,000,000#)
2013 and 2014 is shown below: BEHEWT :
2014 2013
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
BEZAE 3= ¢E]
$1,000,000 to $3,500,000 $1,000,000%F$3,500,000 22 17
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